
 
 

 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday 17 September 2019 at 6.00 pm 
Committee Room A, Royal Tunbridge Wells, Kent  TN1 1RS 

 
 

 

Members:  Councillor Backhouse (Chairman), Councillors Woodward (Vice-Chairman), Atkins, 
Mrs Cobbold, Ellis, Fairweather, Funnell, Hill, Lidstone, Noakes, Podbury, Pope, 
Thomson and Williams 

Quorum:  4 Members 

 
 

1   Chairman's Introduction  (Pages 5 - 6) 
Announcement on procedural matters.  

2   Apologies for Absence  (Pages 7 - 8) 

3   Declarations of Interest:  (Pages 9 - 10) 
To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda.  For any advice 
on declarations of interest, please contact the Monitoring Officer.  

4   Notification of Visiting Members wishing to speak (in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 18):  (Pages 11 - 12) 
Members should indicate which item(s) they wish to speak on and the nature of their 
concern/question/request for clarification.  

5   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 13 - 14) 

6   Licensing Act 2003 - Statement of Licensing Policy  (Pages 15 - 56) 

7   Licensing Partnership Update Report 2019  (Pages 57 - 94) 

8   Introduction of Licensing Pre-Application Advice  (Pages 95 - 108) 

9   Urgent Business:  (Pages 109 - 110) 
To consider any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent, for the reasons to be 
stated, in accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972.  

10   Date of Next Meeting  (Pages 111 - 112) 
To note that the date of the next scheduled meeting is Tuesday 3 December 2019 at 6pm.  

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 
 
 

 
Cheryl Clark Town Hall 
Democratic Services Officer ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS 
 Kent   TN1 1RS 
 Tel: (01892) 554413 
 

 

mod.gov app – go paperless 
 

Easily download, annotate and keep all committee paperwork on your 

mobile device using the mod.gov app – all for free!. 
 

Visit   www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp   for details.  

Page 2

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp


 
 
 

All visitors wishing to attend a public meeting at the Town Hall between the hours of 9.00am 
and 5.00pm should report to reception via the side entrance in Monson Way.  After 5pm, 
access will be via the front door on the corner of Crescent Road and Mount Pleasant Road, 
except for disabled access which will continue by use of an 'out of hours' button at the entrance 
in Monson Way 
 
Notes on Procedure 
 
(1)  A list of background papers appears at the end of each report, where appropriate, 

pursuant to the Local Government Act 1972, section 100D(i). 
 
(2) Members seeking factual information about agenda items are requested to contact the 

appropriate Service Manager prior to the meeting. 
 
(3) Members of the public and other stakeholders are required to register with the Democratic 

Services Officer if they wish to speak on an agenda item at a meeting.  Places are limited 
to a maximum of four speakers per item.  The deadline for registering to speak is 4.00 pm 
the last working day before the meeting.  Each speaker will be given a maximum of 3 
minutes to address the Committee. 

 
(4) All meetings are open to the public except where confidential or exempt information is 

being discussed. The agenda will identify whether a meeting or part of a meeting is not 
open to the public. Meeting rooms have a maximum public capacity as follows: 
Council Chamber: 100, Committee Room A: 20, Committee Room B: 10. 

 
(5) Please note that the public proceedings of this meeting will be recorded and made 

available for playback on the Tunbridge Wells Borough Council website. Any other third 
party may also record or film meetings, unless exempt or confidential information is being 
considered, but are requested as a courtesy to others to give notice of this to the 
Democratic Services Officer before the meeting. The Council is not liable for any third 
party recordings. 

 
Further details are available on the website (www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk) or from 
Democratic Services. 

 

If you require this information in another format 
please contact us, call 01892 526121 or email 

committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk 
 

Accessibility into and within the Town Hall – There is a wheelchair accessible lift 
by the main staircase, giving access to the first floor where the committee rooms are 
situated. There are a few steps leading to the Council Chamber itself but there is a 
platform chairlift in the foyer. 
 

Hearing Loop System – The Council Chamber and Committee Rooms A and B 
have been equipped with hearing induction loop systems. The Council Chamber also 
has a fully equipped audio-visual system. 

 

 

Page 3

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Licensing Committee 17 September 
2019 

 

Chairman’s Introduction 
 

Procedural Item: 
 

Announcement on procedural matters. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Licensing Committee  17 September 
2019 

 

Apologies for Absence 
 

Procedural Item: 
 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Licensing Committee  17 September 2019 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 

Procedural Item: 
 

To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda. For any 
advice on declarations of interest; please contact the Monitoring Officer before the 
meeting. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Licensing Committee 17 September 2019 
 

Notification of Visiting Members wishing to 
speak 

 

Procedural Item: 
 

To note any members of the Council wishing to speak, of which due notice has been 
given in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18, and which item(s) they wish to 
speak on. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 11 June 2019 
 

Present: Councillor Backhouse (Chairman) 
Councillors Woodward (Vice-Chairman), Atkins, Mrs Cobbold, Ellis*, Fairweather, 

Funnell, Hill, Lidstone, Thomson and Williams 
 

Officers in Attendance: Sharon Degiorgio (Senior Licensing Officer), Robin Harris (Senior 
Lawyer (Contentious)), Gary Stevenson (Head of Housing, Health and Environment) and 
Cheryl Clark (Democratic Services Officer) 
 
Other Members in Attendance: *As a recent appointee to the Committee, who had not yet 
completed mandatory Licensing training, Councillor Ellis was in attendance only as an 
observer. 
 
CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION 
 
LC1/19 
 

The Chairman opened the meeting, introduced Committee members and 
officers in attendance, and outlined procedural matters of the meeting. 
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
LC2/19 
 

Apologies for absence were noted from Councillors Noakes, Podbury, Pope 
and Thomson. 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST: 
 
LC3/19 
 

No declarations of interest were made. 
 

NOTIFICATION OF VISITING MEMBERS WISHING TO SPEAK (IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 18): 
 
LC4/19 
 

There were no visiting members who had registered to speak. 
 

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING DATED 5 MARCH 2019 
 
LC5/19 
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the previous meeting dated 5 March 2019 
be approved as a correct. 
 

INDEPENDENT HACKNEY CARRIAGE DEMAND SURVEY 
 
LC6/19 
 

Mrs Degiorgio, Senior Licensing Officer, introduced and summarised the 
report, which explained that a contract had been awarded to undertake an 
independent survey to ascertain whether there was any unmet demand for 
Hackney Carriage vehicle services in the Borough.  The conclusions of the 
survey would be reported to a future meeting of the Licensing Committee. 
 
As part of the discussions, members had the opportunity to ask questions.  It 
was ascertained that this was the first time that the survey had been jointly 
commissioned with Maidstone Borough Council and it was anticipated it 
would provide an overall saving to both authorities. 
 
RESOLVED – That the award of the Independent Hackney Carriage Demand 
Survey Contract, which was let in conjunction with Maidstone Borough 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



2 
 
 

 
 

Council Licensing Service, be noted. 
 

FILM CLASSIFICATION POLICY 
 
LC7/19 
 

Mrs Degiorgio, Senior Licensing Officer, introduced and summarised the 
report, which explained that there was a requirement for the public exhibition 
of all films on licensed premises to be either classified by the British Board of 
Film Classification (BBFC) or authorised by the Licensing Authority under the 
powers of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
The authorisation for the classification of films was delegated to the Head of 
Housing, Health & Environment and this report included details of the fees, 
policy and procedures to provide a framework for consistent decision making. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
1. That a draft Policy for adoption regarding the classification of Films by the 

Council be approved. 
 

2. That the level of fee for classification of a film as set out within the draft 
Policy (subject to exemptions) be approved. 

 
URGENT BUSINESS: 
 
LC8/19 
 

There was no urgent business for consideration. 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
LC9/19 
 

RESOLVED - That the next meeting take place on Tuesday 17 September 
2019, at 6pm. 
 

 
 NOTE: The meeting concluded at 6:15pm  
 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



 

Licensing Committee 17 September 2019 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? No  

 

LICENSING ACT 2003 - STATEMENT OF 
LICENSING POLICY  

 

Final Decision-Maker Full Council  

Portfolio Holder(s)  Portfolio Holder for Sustainability 

Lead Director  Paul Taylor - Director of Change and Communities 

Head of Service Gary Stevenson - Head of Housing, Health and Environment 

Lead Officer/Author Sharon Bamborough – Head of Licensing Partnership 

Classification 

 

Non-exempt  

Wards affected All 

  

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 

1. To agree the proposed amendment to the Statement of Licensing Policy (which will 
expire 6 January 2021) to include a new section on outdoor events 

  

Explain how this report relates to the Corporate Priorities in the Five Year Plan: 

 A Prosperous Borough 

 A Green Borough 

 A Confident Borough 

 To ensure effective partnership working 

  

Timetable  

Meeting Date 

Licensing committee – approved for 
consultation 

05.03.19 

Licensing Committee – consider amendment 
following consultation 

17.09.19 

Full Council - adoption 25.09.19 

Tunbridge Wells Committee Report, version: December 2018 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 

LICENSING ACT 2003 - STATEMENT OF 
LICENSING POLICY 

 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report invites Members to consider a minor review of the current Council’s 

Statement of Licensing Policy for the five-year period 7 January 2016 to 6 
January 2021 so as to include a policy for outdoor events.  
 

 

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) requires the Council, in its role as a licensing 

authority, to prepare and publish a statement of licensing policy with respect to 
the exercise of its functions under the Act.  

 
2.2 The Council’s current Policy is in force until 6 January 2021.  Once in place this      

Policy must be kept under review at least every five years. The usual full review 
of this policy is scheduled to take place in 2020. 

 

2.3 In accordance with this requirement the Committee is asked to agree a minor 
addition to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy for the remainder of the 
current five year period, which commenced on 7 January 2016 and ends on 6 
January 2021. 

 

2.4 A copy of the proposed Statement of Licensing Policy for the five-year period 
expiring 6 January 2021 is attached at Appendix A to the report. 

 

2.5 The proposed Policy has been revised so as to add a new section regarding 
outdoor   events, in section 20, highlighted in yellow.    

 

2.6 Many authorities have seen an increased demand for outdoor events and 
festivals in recent years. The Licensing Authority’s current policy does not have 
any specific or additional considerations for outdoor events as opposed to the 
regular licensing activity which takes places mostly within buildings.  In light of 
the evidence of an increased demand for outdoor events and festivals from 
other authorities, it is anticipated that there may be a national trend for an 
increase in such events and that Tunbridge Wells can expect an increase in 
such demand over the five-year period 7 January 2016 to 6 January 2021. 

 
The proposed section includes: 
 

 A suggested general terminal hour for all licensable activities of 23:00 at 
outdoor events;  

 Setting out expectations that organisers will demonstrate that they have the 
required permissions in place to use the land;  

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



 

 Setting out expectations that organisers will demonstrate that they have 
arrangements in place to ensure the site is properly checked and certified (for 
example, if water supplies or electrics need to be checked); and 

 Setting out expectations that organisers will demonstrate that they have 
notified and where necessary sought authorisation / advice from the Council’s 
Safety Advisory Group for the event.    

 
2.7   At its meeting in March 2019, the Licensing Committee members approved   

consultation on the proposed new section.  
 

 
3. AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
 
3.1 To approve the proposed amendment.  
 

 

3.2 Reject the proposed amendment and leave the policy as it currently is.  
 

 

 
4. PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The Licensing Service recommends the first option in order to keep the wording 

in line with similar proposals for all the statements of licensing policy across the 
Licensing Partnership.  
 

 

 
5. CONSULTATION  
 
5.1 Prior to determining (or amending) its Statement of Licensing Policy the Council 

must consult with those parties identified in section 5(3) of the Licensing Act 
2003, who are: 

 

 the chief officer of police for the licensing authority’s area; 

 the fire and rescue authority for that area; 

 each Local Health Board for an area any part of which is in the licensing 
authority's area 

 each local authority in England whose public health functions within the 
meaning of the National Health Service Act 2006 are exercisable in respect of 
an area any part of which is in the licensing authority's area 

 such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of 
holders of premises licences issued by that authority; 

 such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of 
holders of club premises certificates issued by that authority;  

 such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of 
holders of personal licences issued by that authority; and  

 such other persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of 
business and residents in its area. 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 

5.2 The following parties were also directly consulted on the proposed Policy:  
 

 Members of the Council;  

 Neighbouring Authorities;  

 Parish Clerks 

 Pub Watch Members 

 Libraries 

 Head offices for Breweries 
 

5.3 The proposed amended Policy, together with an invitation to submit comments, 
was posted on the Council’s website.  In addition relevant officers of the 
Council, such as the Council’s Head of Legal Services, was consulted on the 
Policy. 

 
5.4 During the 6 week consultation period it was open to any person to make 

comments on the proposed Policy. This allows for comments both on the 
proposed Policy together with the submission of any evidence that specifically 
relates to ‘outdoor events’. 

 
5.5 Consultation was carried out from 15th April 2019 to 26th May 2019. Two 

responses were received: 
 

1. Bidborough Village Hall responded advising that there foresaw no 
problems with the proposed change 

2. Royal Tunbridge Wells Together has submitted an objection to the 
proposal due to occasional event which would normally go on beyond the 
proposed general terminal hour.    

 
Copies are attached as Appendix B 
 

5.6   In response to the objection, the Head of Licensing would advise as follows: 

 The introduction of this section will not prohibit applications to be made 
beyond the terminal hour of 23:00, it is merely intended to be a 
guideline to event organisers of a general expectation of cessation of 
licensable activities.  

 There will be events which occur on dates such as New Year’s Eve, 
where there would be an expectation to go to beyond midnight and it is 
unlikely that such applications would be refused on that basis alone in 
line with this policy.  

 It should always be the case that each application should be assessed 
on its individual merits, but the licensing authority’s position is that to 
prevent public nuisance, outdoor events should, in general, have a 
terminal hour no later than 23:00 and introduction of this section to the 
existing policy will allow for the promotion of this objective.  

 At present there is no policy to rely on for outdoor events and it is 
hoped that this proposed change will provide clarity and guidance to 
applicants without restricting their ability to apply for hours beyond 
23:00 – it is simply the case that an applicant may need to be more 
specific and demonstrate how they are going to promote the licensing 
objectives and should be granted a licence for an outdoor event which 
goes beyond the policy terminal hour.   

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



 

 The proposed general terminal hour was agreed with Environmental 
Health and is based upon experience of previous events and 
complaints about noise late into the night.   

 
 
 

 
6. NEXT STEPS: COMMUNICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

DECISION 
 
6.1 Should the Committee be minded to agree the proposed amendment to policy, 

it would then be referred to a meeting of the full council for adoption.   
 

 
7. CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS 
 
 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

Legal including 
Human Rights 
Act 

Under the Licensing Act 2003 Section 5 the 
licensing authority has a duty to publish a 
statement of licensing policy with respect to 
the exercise of its licensing functions. By 
virtue of subsection 4 the Council must keep 
its policy under review and make such 
revisions to it, at such times, as it considers 
appropriate. This is such a revision.  

 

Robin Harris 

Senior Lawyer – 
Contentious, 
Mid-Kent 

 

02.09.19 

 

Finance and 
other resources 

There are no financial implications Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

 

Staffing 
establishment 

No impact on Tunbridge Wells Borough 
Council  

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

 

Risk 
Management   

A risk assessment is undertaken on an 
annual basis regarding the service 
objectives and reviewed regularly  

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



 

 

Data Protection No impact.  Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

 

Environment  
and Sustainability 

No impact.  Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

 

Community 
Safety 

 

No impact.  Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

 

Health and 
Safety 

No impact.  Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

No impact.  
 
 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

 

Equalities No impact.  
 
 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 
8. REPORT APPENDICES 
 
 
The following documents are to be published with and form part of the report: 

 Appendix A: [Statement of licensing policy amended to show new wording] 

 Appendix B – copies of consultation responses  
 

 
9. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
none 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 
 
 

Statement of 
Licensing Policy 

Licensing Act 2003 

All applications will be considered on their merits 
 
 
 
 

Page 23

Appendix A



October 2015  

Item Page 

Introduction 3 

Section 1 – Consultation 4 

Section 2 – Background 5 

Section 3 – Licensing Authority general policy considerations 7 

Section 4 – Responsible Authorities and other persons 9 

Section 5 – Exchange of information 11 

Section 6 – Human Rights and Equal Opportunities 11 

Section 7 – Compliance and enforcement 11 

Section 8 – New premises applications 13 

Section 9 – Variations to licences 14 

Section 10 – Variations to specify a new designated premises supervisor 15 

Section 11 – Transfer of premises licences 14 

Section 12 – Provisional statement for premises 15 

Section 13 – Club premises certificates 15 

Section 14 – Review of a premises licence or club premises certificate 16 

Section 15 – Application to vary premises licence at community premises to 

remove the mandatory requirement for a DPS 

17 

Section 16 – Hearings 18 

Section 17 – Licence conditions 19 

Section 18 – Personal licences 23 

Section 19 – Temporary event notices 24 

Section 20 – Outdoor Events 25 

Section 21 – Other relevant matters 25 

Section 22 – Information 27 

Appendix A – Contact details of Local Licensing Authority Department 28 

Appendix B – Responsible Authorities 29 

Appendix C – References to guides of best practice 30 

Appendix D – Useful contacts 31 

Appendix E – Recommended delegation of functions 32 

Page 24

Appendix A



October 2015  

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 

INTRODUCTION 
 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council is a member of the Licensing Partnership, which includes 
Maidstone Borough Council and Sevenoaks District Council. However this policy relates to 
Tunbridge Wells. 

 
This is the Statement of Licensing Policy as determined by the Council in respect of its 
licensing functions, with regard to the Licensing Act 2003. This document sets out the position 
and view of the Licensing Authority in respect of matters in connection with the discharge of its 
licensing function. 

 

This Statement of Licensing Policy commences on the 7 January 2016 and continues for a 
five year period. During the five year period the Policy will be kept under review and the 
Authority will make such revisions to it at such times as it considers appropriate. Further 
licensing statements will be published every five years thereafter or earlier as necessary. 

 

All references to the ‘Guidance’ refer to the latest version of the Home Office Guidance to 
Licensing Authorities issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

The 2003 Act requires the Council to carry out its various licensing functions so as to promote 
the following four licensing objectives: 

 

 the prevention of crime and disorder; 
 

 public safety; 
 

 the prevention of public nuisance; 
 

 the protection of children from harm. 
 

The aims of this Statement of Licensing Policy, in line with the four licensing objectives, are to: 
 

 minimise nuisance and disturbance to the public through the licensing process; 
 

 help build a fair and prosperous society that properly balances the rights of 
people and their communities; 

 

 integrate its aims and objectives with other initiatives, policies plus strategies 
that will: 

 

(1) reduce crime and disorder; 
 

(2) encourage tourism; 
 

(3) encourage an early evening and night time economy which 
is viable, sustainable and socially responsible; 

 

(4) reduce alcohol misuse; 
 

(5) encourage employment; 
 

(6) encourage the self sufficiency of local communities; 
 

(7) reduce the burden of unnecessary regulation on business; 
 

(8) encourage and promote live music, dancing and theatre for 
the wider cultural benefit of communities generally. 

Page 25

Appendix A



October 2015  

The Council will endeavour to work with other Local Authorities to ensure that a consistent 
approach is taken in licensing matters, whilst respecting the differing needs of individual 
communities throughout the local authority area. 

 

This policy covers a wide variety of premises and activities carried on within them. For this 
reason, this policy cannot detail all the factors that influence the achievement of the licensing 
objectives nor can this policy detail all the control measures that may be appropriate. 
However, there will be zero tolerance of dealing in or using controlled drugs (as defined by the 
Misuse of Drugs Act 1971) on licensed premises. 

 
 

1 CONSULTATION 
 

1.1 The Statement of Licensing Policy will be kept under review and where any significant 
amendments are considered necessary these will only be made after consultations have 
taken place in accordance with Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003, and the subsequent 
amendments made to the Act by the Police & Social Responsibility Act 2011 section 122. 
Amendments required due to a change in legislation that do not impact on the aims and 
objectives of the Policy or the promotion of the Licencing Objectives will be made with the 
approval of the Licensing Manager in order for the policy to remain legislatively current. 

 
 

1.2 Proper weight, in accordance with the Guidance, has been given to the views of all 
those consulted. Those consulted in the preparation of this Policy included: 

 

  the Chief Officer of Police for Kent 

  the Superintendent of Police for the Tunbridge Wells Borough area 

 one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 
persons carrying on licensed businesses in the council area 

 one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 
persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions 
under the Act 

 any other bodies the council deemed appropriate 

 members of the public who requested to be consulted and have responded 
previously. 

 

1.3 In accordance with the guidance the following persons have also been consulted on 
this revised statement: 

 

 all ward members 

 all parish councils 

 all bordering local authorities 

 Kent Police Licensing Team 

 all responsible authorities under the Licensing Act 2003 

 British Beer & Pub Association 

Page 26

Appendix A



October 2015  

THE POLICY 
 

2 BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 When administering licensing matters the Council as the Licensing Authority will have 
regard to and promote the four Licensing Objectives set out in section 4 of Part 2 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

 
The four licensing objectives are the: 

 

 Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 

 Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

 Public Safety 
 

 Protection of Children from Harm 
 

The Licensing Authority gives equal weight to each of these objectives. 
 

2.2 The 2003 Act requires Licensing Authorities to publish a ‘Statement of Licensing 
Policy’ (the Policy) that sets out the approach the Licensing Authority will take when 
administering applications and other processes under the Licensing Act 2003 to 
ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
2.3  This Statement of Licensing Policy has been prepared in accordance with the 

provisions of the 2003 Act having regard to the revised guidance issued under 
section 182 of the Act and any amendments or consequential amendments, the 
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and the Live Music Act 2012. 

 
2.4  The 2003 Act further requires the Licensing Authority to monitor, review and where 

appropriate, amend its Statement of Licensing Policy. Where significant changes or 
a review of this Policy is undertaken, the Licensing Authority will consult with those 
parties listed at paragraphs 1.2 and 1.3 above and others prior to amending the 
Policy and also in preparing each statement of Licensing Policy in the future. Minor 
amendments reflecting legislative changes will be undertaken by officers to 
maintain accuracy. 

 
2.5  Tunbridge Wells Borough Council is the Licensing Authority pursuant to the 

Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) and is responsible for considering a range of licence 
applications and amendments to licences for a number of activities detailed below. 
The purpose of licensing is to regulate the carrying on of licensable activities on 
licensed premises, at qualifying clubs and under temporary event notices. The 
activities as defined by the Act include: 

 

 Sale and/or supply of alcohol 

 The provision of regulated entertainment which includes: 

o the performance of a play 
o an exhibition of a film 
o an indoor sporting event 
o boxing or wrestling entertainment 
o a performance of live music (subject to some exemptions) 

o playing of recorded music 
 

 Provision of late night refreshment 

Page 27

Appendix A



October 2015  

2.6 The types of premises likely to be included within the licensing regime include: 
 

 Pubs and night clubs 

 Off licences (includes supermarkets/shops selling alcohol) 

 Restaurants serving alcohol 

 Restaurants serving hot food and drink after 11pm 

 Private members clubs/social clubs 

 Hotels/guest houses selling alcohol 

 Cinemas/theatres 

 Community premises and village halls 

 Providers of temporary events involving licensable activities 
 

and any other premises at which licensable activities are to be provided. 
 

2.7 The Policy will apply across a range of applications which include the following: 
 

 New Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates 

 Variations to Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates 

 Provisional Statements for proposed premises yet to be built 

 Transfer of Premises Licences 

 Disapplication of mandatory condition in respect of alcohol sales at village halls 
and community premises 

 Variations of licences to change the Designated Premises Supervisor 

 Reviews of Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates 

 Personal Licences 

 Temporary Events Notices 
 

2.8 The Licensing Authority also regulates other activities at licensed premises which 
include sexual entertainment events and gambling 

Page 28

Appendix A



October 2015  

3 LICENSING AUTHORITY GENERAL POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

 
 

3.1  The Licensing Authority encourages the development of premises which are not alcohol- 
led and which are aimed at different sectors of the population, including age and gender. 
Premises that promote the arts, a food offer, or other cultural activities are particularly 
encouraged. 

 

3.2  Where premises such as pubs are alcohol-based, they are encouraged to consider 
diversifying their provisions so as to encourage a mixed customer-base and wider 
attractions, including community uses, soft refreshments, snacks and live entertainment. 
Diversification is important in the promotion of the licensing objectives as well as 
ensuring a sustainable economic future for premises. 

 

3.3 The Licensing Authority recognises the need to promote and encourage live and 
recorded music, dancing, theatre and other forms of entertainment for the wider cultural 
benefit of communities generally. The potential for limited disturbance in 
neighbourhoods will be carefully balanced with the wider benefits. 

 

3.4  Pre application advice is available from licensing officers upon request and where 
appropriate. The Licensing Authority expects that applicants will have in advance 
researched and understood the relevant legislation in relation to their application and 
their particular business plans as well as this Policy. It is not for licensing officers to 
determine the business needs and capabilities of an applicant but advice can be offered 
in relation to the licensing objectives. In addition guidance notes are available on the 
licensing pages of Council’s website – www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk 

 

3.5  Licensing officers will also provide advice to other parties on the licensing process 
where needed in relation to objecting to or supporting applications that may affect them. 

 

3.6 Supermarkets and other ‘off’ licensed premises selling alcohol. The Licensing Authority 
will generally consider licensing shops, stores and supermarkets to sell alcohol for 
consumption off the premises throughout opening times. However where there are 
reasons for restricting or amending hours, for example, where premises become the 
focus of disorder and/or disturbance, such restrictions or amendments will be considered 
where relevant representations have been made. 

 

3.7 All ‘off ‘licensed premises must comply with the Licensing Act 2003 Mandatory 
Conditions Order in relation to age related sales. The Licensing Authority also expects 
such premises to implement additional measures to prevent and deter proxy sales on 
behalf of under 18’s. 

 

3.8 Licensees should also carefully consider alcohol sales to customers who have or appear 
to have alcohol related health issues, and whether those customers are already appear 
under the influence of alcohol when attempting to make purchases. 

 

3.9 The Licensing Authority expects adequate checks to be made and all reasonable steps 
taken to ensure alcohol delivered by way of online shopping services (as provided by 
most large supermarket chains) is not delivered to minors to prevent a risk of underage 
consumption. 

 

3.10 Where self-pay till points are made available in stores selling alcohol, provision must 
be included for alcohol sales to be identified and approved prior to completion of the 
purchase. 

Page 29

Appendix A

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/


October 2015  

3.11 Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) at alcohol licensed premises. Whilst this role 
has a limited definition under the Licensing Act 2003, it is expected that this person 
nominated on a licence will have overall responsibility for the day to day management 
and control of the licensed premises and in particular be responsible for the safe receipt, 
storage and sale of alcohol. 

 

3.12 The Licensing Authority would expect the DPS to be onsite at the licensed premises 
for the majority of time when alcohol is being sold subject to working hours’ legislation 
and absence for sickness and holidays. The Licensing Authority expects the DPS to 
provide training to staff in relation to alcohol sales and to authorise the employees the 
DPS considers competent to sell alcohol on their behalf in writing. 

 

3.13 The Licensing Authority expects that a DPS should have responsibility for only one 
licensed premises at a time to ensure good management of the premises and the 
licensable activities. Where the same person is a nominated DPS on more than one 
premises licence and representations are made, the Licensing Authority will wish to 
satisfy itself that the premises in question can properly be managed by that person whilst 
responsibly promoting the licensing objectives. 

 

3.14 Live Music. It is acknowledged the implementation of the Live Music Act in 2012 has 
resulted in a lighter touch regulation of live music up to 11pm on alcohol licensed 
premises, and this is seen as a positive approach for premises wishing to provide live 
music. However, the Licensing Authority does not see this as an opportunity for 
licensees to provide live music events that cause nuisance and disturbance to local 
residents or businesses. 

 

3.15 The Licensing Authority expects that where unregulated live music is proposed at 
licensed premises, all due care and consideration is taken to prevent disturbance. The 
council will consider using its powers under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 to 
prevent and control public nuisance caused by poorly managed live music at licensed 
premises. 

 

3.16 Deregulated Entertainment. Where the further deregulation of schedule 1 of the 
Licensing Act has reduced the regulatory controls on some regulated entertainment 
activities, the Licensing Authority will expect licensees to ensure that no nuisance or 
disturbance is caused to local residents and businesses when providing the deregulated 
activities. The Licensing Authority will consider using alternative powers as per para 
3.15 (Awaiting final confirmation of the deregulation plans) 

 

3.17 Late Night Levy (LNL). Whilst it is acknowledged that the provisions for implementing 
a late night levy arise from the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, any 
levy will potentially have a direct impact on all licensed premises within the district. 
Should evidence arise to support implementing a levy the statutory consultation process 
will be followed and the authority will very carefully use its discretion in relation to design 
and impact of a levy. 

 

3.18 In advance of any decision to implement a LNL, this authority will enter into 
discussions with the Police to agree the allocation of the Police share of the levy to 
support the policing of the night time economy within this district . 

 

3.19 Early Morning Alcohol Restriction Order (EMARO). The Licensing Authority has 
considered the options around the imposition of an early morning alcohol restriction 
order and has no plans at the time of developing this policy to consider an imposition of 
this Order. There is currently evidence of low levels of alcohol related crime and 
disorder, nuisance and anti-social behaviour within the district which is decreasing. 

Page 30

Appendix A



October 2015  

Should evidence arise to support implementing an EMARO, the statutory consultation 
process will be followed and the matter referred to the Full Council for determination. 

 

3.20 Licensing and planning permission. The use of a licensed premises or place may be 
subject to planning controls. This is a separate regulatory regime outside the scope of 
the Licensing Act 2003. The Licensing Authority recognises that there is no legal basis 
for refusing a licence application in the absence of any planning permission for the 
business to which the licence application relates. 

 

3.21 Need for licensed premises and Cumulative Impact. ‘Need’ concerns the commercial 
demand for particular licensed premises such as a pub, club or hotel. This is a ‘market 
forces’ matter and is not of concern to the Licensing Authority. ‘Cumulative Impact’ 
means the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives by a significant 
or excessive number of licensed premises concentrated in one locality. This is a matter 
for consideration by the Licensing Authority. 

 

3.22 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that a concentration of some types of licensed 
premises in a locality can result in increased footfall, congregation of the public in the 
streets and potential for increased crime and disorder, litter and anti-social behaviour, as 
well as noise nuisance to local residents. This would be a result of the presence of the 
number of premises and not attributable to individual businesses. 

 

3.23 The Licensing Authority, having regard to the evidence available, considers that 
currently there is no particular part of the district where there is an identified cumulative 
impact of licensed premises on any of the licensing objectives. If residents or a 
Responsible Authority (in particular the Police) provide relevant evidence through a 
representation in the future that support the imposition of a Policy that restricts the 
number of new and/or later opening premises, this will be considered and consulted on. 

 

3.24 The absence of an existing cumulative impact or saturation policy does not, however, 
prevent any responsible authority or other person making representations on a new 
application for the grant of a licence on the grounds that the premises will give rise to a 
negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. The Licensing 
Authority will also take into account the effect on resources, including police resources, 
to cope with any influx of visitors to an area, particularly late at night. 

 

4 RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES AND OTHER PERSONS 
 

4.1 Responsible authorities are public bodies that are statutory consultees that must be 
notified of applications by the applicant. The full list and contact details can be found 
at Appendix C and are contained on the Tunbridge Wells Borough Council web-site 
at Responsible Authorities. 

 

4.2 When dealing with applications for licences and reviews of premises licences, the 
Licensing Authority is obliged to consider representations from two categories of 
persons, referred to as ‘Responsible Authorities’ and ‘Other Persons’. This allows for 
a broad range of persons to comment both for and against applications for premises 
licences and club premises certificates and for reviews. 

 

4.3 The Licensing Authority may only consider representations that are relevant. In that 
they relate to the promotion of the licensing objectives, or that they raise issues in 
relation to this Statement of Licensing Policy or Home Office Guidance. 

 
4.4 The Licensing Authority will take care to ensure that concerns raised by Responsible 

Authorities in relation to their own legislative functions are not taken into account if 
they are not relevant to the application for a premises licence under the Act, or the 

Page 31

Appendix A

http://www.basingstoke.gov.uk/browse/business/licensing/licencingact2003/responsibleauthorities.htm


October 2015  

promotion of the licensing objectives. It would expect those authorities to use their 
powers and duties within their statutory roles to control such matters. Any 
representation made by a Responsible Authority that relates to the promotion of the 
licensing objectives will be accepted. 

 
4.5 The Licensing Authority must give the appropriate amount of weight to 

representations made by the Police on crime and disorder matters. The Police are 
the Licensing Authority’s main source of advice on matters relating to the promotion 
of the crime and disorder licensing objective. The Licensing Authority will accept 
representations made by the Police unless the authority has evidence that to do so 
would not be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
4.6 Where an ‘Other Person or Persons’ request to be represented when seeking to 

make a representation, the Licensing Authority will require written evidence from the 
person/s being represented that they have authorised a third party to speak or write 
on their behalf. 

 
4.7 The Licensing Authority will examine closely all representations to ensure that they 

are not frivolous, repetitive or vexatious. Matters that this authority will look at are 
likely to include: 

 

 who is making the representation, and whether there is a history of making 
representations that are not relevant or which have been previously 
considered vexatious of frivolous 

 whether the representation raises a ‘relevant’ issue 

 whether the representation raises issues specifically to do with the premises 
and/or the licensable activities that are the subject of the application. 

 

4.8 The above considerations are not exhaustive, and the Licensing Authority will have 
regard to anything a person making a representation, or persons representing them, 
say about his or her status to make representations. Nothing in this Policy should be 
taken to undermine the right of any person to make a representation on an 
application or to seek a review of a licence where provision to do so exists. 

 

4.9 The Health Authority is now included on the list of Responsible Authorities. It is 
acknowledged that they may be useful in providing evidence of alcohol related health 
harms that are directly linked to premises or a cluster of premises. It may also be 
able to provide relevant information on alcohol related admissions and sickness that 
relate to specific licensed premises. 

 

4.10 The Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority. The Licensing Authority has 
carefully considered its role as a Responsible Authority under the Act. It will achieve 
a separation of responsibilities through procedures and approved delegations within 
the authority to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. A 
separation is achieved by allocating distinct functions (i.e. those of Licensing 
Authority and Responsible Authority) to different officers within the licensing team. 

 

4..11 The Licensing Authority does not expect to act as a Responsible Authority on behalf 
of third parties but accepts that there may be rare circumstances where this approach 
may be required. An example may be where matters arise at premises of which the 
licensing authority is aware that impact negatively on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives and residents, and other third parties are unwilling or unable to either 
request a review or make a representation. 

Page 32

Appendix A



October 2015  

5 EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION 
 

5.1 The Licensing Authority will act in accordance with the provisions of the Licensing Act 
2003 and the Data Protection Act 1998 in its exchange of information. Where a 
protocol is established to set out the mechanism for exchange of information with 
other regulatory bodies, any such protocol will be made publicly available. 

 

6 HUMAN RIGHTS AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES 
 

6.1 The Human Rights Act 1998 makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way 
which is incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. In making 
decisions and determining appropriate action the council will have due regard to the 
Convention. The Licensing Authority will interpret the LA2003 in a manner consistent 
with the Human Rights Act 1998. 

6.2 The Licensing Authority will consider the effect upon people’s human rights and 
adopt a principle of proportionality and the need to balance the rights of the individual 
with the rights of the community as a whole.  Action taken by the council which 
affects another’s rights must be no more onerous then is necessary in a democratic 
society. 

 

6.3 The Equality Act 2010 requires public bodies to consider all individuals when carrying 
out their day to day work – in shaping Policy, in delivering services and in relation to 
their own employees. It requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity, and foster good relations 
between different people when carrying out their activities. 

 

6.4 The Equality Duty supports good decision making – it encourages public bodies to 
understand how different people will be affected by their activities, so that their 
policies and services are appropriate and accessible to all and meet different 
people’s needs. By understanding the effect of their activities on different people, and 
how inclusive public services can support and open up people’s opportunities, public 
bodies can be more efficient and effective. The Equality Duty therefore helps public 
bodies to deliver the Government’s overall objectives for public services. 

 

7 COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT 
 

7.1 There are a range of other offences detailed under Part 7 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
The Licensing Authority will liaise with the Responsible Authorities to determine 
enforcement of specific offences on a case by case basis. Offences related to sales 
of alcohol to minors will be enforced by the Police or Trading Standards Authority 
unless they form part of a range of offences identified by the Licensing Authority. 

 

7.2 The Licensing Authority has an approved Licensing Enforcement Policy which 
complies with the Regulatory Compliance Code and it has also adopted the Kent and 
Medway Enforcement Protocol. 

 

7.3 A risk-based inspection programme is in place, which includes the targeting of high 
risk premises which require greater attention, whilst operating a lighter touch in 
respect of low risk and well managed premises. The risk-based approach is based 
on Home Office Guidance; the activities authorised and premises compliance history. 

 

7.4 The authority acknowledges that where annual fee payments for premises licences or 

club premises certificates are not made it must notify the holder in writing and 
specify the date on which the suspension takes effect; this date must be at least 

Page 33

Appendix A



October 2015  

two working days after the day the authority gives the notice to suspend the 
licence or certificate and may inform the Police Authority of the suspension. This 
Authority may consider giving the holder a longer period of notice. 

 

Where licences or certificates are suspended, the premises or club may be visited 
and enforcement action may be taken where licensable activities are being provided 
unlawfully while a licence is suspended. 

Page 34

Appendix A



October 2015  

CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS 

 
 

8 NEW PREMISES APPLICATIONS 
 

8.1 This Licensing Authority is aware that in making decisions about applications for 
licences it will have regard to: 

 

 its Statement of Licensing Policy made under section 5 of the Licensing Act 
2003 

 

 the Statutory Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, 
and that decisions made are reasonably consistent with the four licensing 
objectives. 

 

8.2 Where elements of applications are unclear or unspecific, particularly in relation to 
operating schedules and trading hours, the Licensing Authority will expect the 
applicants to provide additional clarity on a request from delegated officers of the 
Authority. 

 

8.3 Officers will routinely check that the required Public Notices are exhibited at the 
premises and the Public Notices are published in newspapers in accordance with the 
Regulations. 

 

8.4 Delegated officers will usually notify Ward Councillors to whose Ward the application 
relates, and the Parish Council for the relevant parish via the weekly premises 
tracker. 

 

8.5 Where there are no representations in relation to an application for a Premises 
Licence or a Club Premises Certificate, the licence or certificate is automatically 
deemed granted after the 28 day consultation period under the terms and conditions 
applied for. Licensing officers will interpret the detail of the operating schedule and 
convert into enforceable licence conditions. 

 

8.6 Where relevant representations are received the application will be referred to the 
Licensing Sub-Committee for determination at hearing, unless all parties, following 
mediation, agree that a hearing is not necessary. See para 16.5 for procedure to 
follow. 

 

8.7 Where applications result in the need for a hearing, the process at para 16 of this 
policy will apply. 

 

8.8 Annual fees and suspension of licences or certificates for non-payment. The 
Licensing Authority is required under sections 55A or 92A of the Licensing Act to 
suspend premises licenses or club premises certificates where the annual fee has 
not been paid. The Licensing Authority will invoice each licence holder when the 
annual fee is due, setting out the fee, and the consequences for non-payment. 
Where this has not been paid or there has been no claim of administrative error by 
the end of 21 days of the due date, this Authority will serve the required notice to 
suspend the licence. 

 

8.9 Where a licence or certificate is suspended this means that no licensable activities 
will be authorised to be provided at the premises, until the suspension is lifted on 
receipt of payment of the overdue fee. Officers may conduct visits to premises where 
a licence or certificate has been suspended and may take the appropriate action in 
accordance with the legislation and the Council’s Enforcement Policy. 

Page 35

Appendix A



October 2015  

8.10 Each case will be determined on its individual merits and depending upon the 
circumstances and where appropriate in accordance with the Licensing Act, the 
Licensing Authority may decide not to suspend a licence or certificate or carry out 
enforcement, pending payment of the overdue fee. 

 

9 VARIATIONS TO LICENCES 
 

9.1 From time to time licensees may wish to change the nature of the business and vary 
the trading hours or the licensable activities on offer. These can range from minor 
changes having little or no impact such as minor changes to the premises plan to 
more significant changes that will affect the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
These could include for example; the provision of additional activities, increasing 
capacities or extended trading hours. However where a variation is so substantial 
that it significantly changes the nature of the business and layout of the premises it is 
likely that a new premises licence application will be required rather than a variation. 

 

9.2 The relevant parts of this Policy to be applied to significant variation applications is 
the same as for new premises licence applications at section 8 above. 

 

9.3 Where applications are made for minor variations Licensing Officers will consider 
whether there are any impacts on any of the Licensing Objectives. Where the 
variation proposed could have an adverse effect on any of the Licensing Objectives 
the application will be rejected and the applicant advised to seek a variation in 
accordance with section 34 of the Act. 

 

9.4 Where minor impact or no impact is considered Officers will consult with the relevant 
(if any) responsible authorities. 

 

10 VARIATIONS TO SPECIFY A NEW DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR 
(DPS) 

 

10.1 The Licensing Authority expects the nominated DPS on a licence to be involved in 
and supervising the day to day operation of licensed premises that sell alcohol. 
Where the person nominated as DPS ceases to undertake that role the Licensing 
Authority would expect the licensee to replace that person as soon as is reasonably 
practicable to maintain adequate control of the premises. 

 

10.2 Where a DPS notifies the Licensing Authority that he or she has resigned, the 
licensing officers will enter into immediate discussion with the licensee in relation to 
the mandatory conditions concerning the sale of alcohol, and provide appropriate 
advice to prevent unauthorised alcohol sales. 

 

10.3 All applications to specify a new DPS must be made by the licence holder or by a 
person/body authorised in writing to act on the licensee’s behalf. 

 

10.4 Where there are no representations the default position is to grant the variation. 
 

10.5 The Licensing Authority will follow the Guidance issued under s.182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003, with respect to representations in relation to crime and or disorder. 
Applications that are subject to representations will be referred for a hearing at which 
point the Sub-Committee may approve or reject the application. 

Page 36

Appendix A



October 2015  

11 TRANSFERS OF PREMISES LICENCES /CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATES 
 

11.1 Before a licence transfer can be administered, the Licensing Authority expects 
consent to have been obtained from the previous premises licence holder. If this is 
not possible the applicant will be expected to demonstrate that he or she has taken 
all reasonable steps to secure consent to transfer the licence or certificate.. 

 

11.2 It is acknowledged that in some cases the holders of either a licence or certificate 
leave premises and do not provide any forwarding contact details, or there has been 
a death or incapacity of the licence holder. In such cases where the holder cannot be 
contacted to give approval, a licence/certificate will be transferred in accordance with 
the requirements of the Act. 

 

11.3 Where a Police objection to the transfer is received the application will be determined 
through the hearings process. 

 

12 PROVISIONAL STATEMENTS FOR PREMISES 
 

12.1 A provisional statement may be applied for where a proposed licensed premises has 
yet to be built or altered for the purpose of becoming a licensed premises. This 
option allows potential applicants advance notice of whether a premises licence is 
likely to be granted on completion of its construction or conversion. 

 

12.2 The process for considering an application for a provisional statement is the same as 
that for a premises licence application. The applicant is obliged to give notice of the 
application in the same way as applying for a premises licence. Responsible 
authorities and other parties may make representations and there are rights of 
appeal. 

 

12.3 The holder of a provisional statement may apply for a premises licence once the 
premises are constructed, altered or acquired. The Licensing Authority will be 
constrained in the matters it can consider when determining the premises licence 
application, and in terms of representations about premises licence applications that 
follow the grant of a provisional statement, no further representations from relevant 
authorities or interested parties can be taken into account unless they concern 
matters which could not have been addressed at the provisional statement stage, or 
they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances. 

 

12.4 In addition, this authority may refuse the premises licence application (or grant it on 
terms different to those attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to 
matters: 

 

 which could not have been raised by way of representations at the provisional 
statement stage, 

 which, in this authority’s opinion, reflect a change in the operator’s 
circumstances, or 

 where the premises has not been constructed in accordance with the plan and 
information submitted with the provisional statement application.  This must 
be a substantial change to the plan and this authority will discuss any 
concerns with the applicant before making a decision. 

Page 37

Appendix A



October 2015  

13 CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATES 

13.1 The Licensing Authority acknowledges the importance and history of members clubs 
and the privileged position held by clubs historically in relation to alcohol licensing. 

13.2 Members clubs are able to obtain a club premises certificate to authorise licensable 
activities for their members and their guests. There is no requirement for any 
members to hold a personal licence under the Licensing Act 2003, and there is no 
requirement to specify a designated premises supervisor. It is acknowledged that 
alcohol is supplied by and for the members through their membership of the club. 

 

13.3 In order to apply for a club premises certificate the Licensing Authority must be 
satisfied that the club is a bona fide club and satisfies the legal conditions set out in 
the Act. Applicants for a club premises certificate will be required to complete a club 
declaration form setting out how the club will meet the conditions and definitions 
stated in the Act. Licensing officers will have delegated authority to make additional 
enquiries where appropriate in order to satisfy that a proposed club meets the criteria 
laid out in the Act. 

 

13.4 The fundamental principles for premises licence applications set out at section 8 of 
this Policy will apply to applications for club premises certificates subject to 
exemptions in respect of the DPS and the requirement for evidence of the club’s 
status. 

 

13.5 Any qualifying club wishing to offer licensable activities at events to which non- 
members will attend will be required to authorise such activities by way of a 
Temporary Event Notice (TEN) or by ensuring compliance with the club rules to allow 
the public to enjoy the clubs facilities and activities without jeopardising the validity of 
the club premises certificate. 

 

13.6 The Licensing Authority expects ‘public’ events on club premises to be authorised by 
a Temporary Event Notice. It is expected that club committee members will seek 
advice from the Licensing Authority prior to providing such activities for non-members 
to prevent any unauthorised activities. 

 

13.7 Where the Licensing Authority identifies that a club no longer meets the conditions 
set out in section 62 of the Licensing Act 2003 or where the Licensing Authority 
obtains evidence to demonstrate that a club no longer acts in good faith as a 
qualifying club, it will give the club a notice withdrawing the club premises certificate. 

 

13.8 Suspension of Club Premises Certificates may also occur under section 92A of the 
LA2003. 

 

14 REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE OR CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE 
 

14.1 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that matters can arise at premises that raise 
concern as to the continued promotion of the licensing objectives at licensed 
premises. 

 

14.2 The Act allows a licence or certificate to be reviewed where such matters arise. It is 

expected that most reviews will be applied for by Responsible Authorities. 
 

14.3 Although this Licensing Authority is also a Responsible Authority and entitled to bring 
about a review application, it is not expected that it will act as a Responsible Authority 

Page 38

Appendix A



October 2015  

on behalf of other parties (for example, local residents, local councillors or community 
groups). 

 

14.4 Such parties can make relevant representations to the Licensing Authority in their 
own right, and it is reasonable for the Licensing Authority to expect them to make 
representations themselves where they are reasonably able to do so. However, if 
these parties have failed to take action and the Licensing Authority is aware of 
relevant grounds to make a representation, it may consider acting in its capacity as 
Responsible Authority. 

 

14.5 The Licensing Authority will determine whether a review application is relevant and 
the validity of a review application will be determined by a licensing officer. This will 
be on the basis of whether the request for the review is relevant to the matters listed 
below: 

 

 in accordance with the Guidance issued by the Home Office; 
 

 relevant to the non-promotion of the licensing objectives 
 

14.6 The request for the review will also be subject to the consideration by the licensing 
officer as to whether the request is frivolous, vexatious, or repetitious 

 

14.7 The Licensing Authority would expect grounds for a review to be evidence based but 
will consider each application on its merits and allow the benefit of doubt where 
appropriate. 

 
14.8 Where a review application is accepted the Licensing Authority will encourage the 

parties to enter into mediation during the consultation period to help resolve issues 
arising. The Council would be happy to assist in these meetings being chaired by a 
member of their team but all parties may choose to have a different third party as a 
mediation chairperson. 

 

14.9 All representations received in support of or against a review application will be 
considered by the licensing officers as to whether such representations are relevant 
to the application. Where appropriate the benefit of doubt will be given and 
representations accepted. 

 

14.10 All reviews will lead to a hearing before a Sub-Committee. This may be a full hearing 
or a condensed hearing to consider the outcome of mediation. However other parties 
who have made representation but not been involved in mediation will be permitted to 
voice their representations at the hearing in accordance with the Hearings 
Regulations. The Policy applied to hearings can be found in section 16. 

 

14.11 The authority considers that where reviews are raised as a result of serious crime 
and disorder causing that licensing objective to be undermined, then it is likely that a 
revocation of the licence will be considered. 

 

15 APPLICATION TO VARY PREMISES LICENCE AT COMMUNITY PREMISES TO 
REMOVE THE MANDATORY REQUIREMENT FOR A DPS. 

 

15.1 The Licensing Authority acknowledges the value that local community premises bring 
to their localities and that most are operated and managed by volunteers. The 
mandatory requirement for a nominated DPS to be in place at alcohol licensed 
community premises can be burdensome and difficult for an individual to manage at 
such premises. 

Page 39

Appendix A



October 2015  

15.2 The Act allows Management Committees at Community Premises to take over the 
responsibility of the alcohol sales by applying to the Licensing Authority to remove 
the requirement to have a nominated DPS at the premises to authorise sales of 
alcohol. The Licensing Authority will, subject to strong evidence that a community 
premises is well managed by an experienced committee, support applications to 
remove the mandatory condition requiring all alcohol sales to be authorised by a 
personal licence holder. 

 

15.3 Before considering an application the Licensing Authority will satisfy itself that a 
premises meets the definition of a community premises. Enquiries will be made as to 
the regular use of the premises and whether it is in the main ‘community’ based. 
Where there is a regular ‘commercial’ or ‘non-community based’ use or a 
membership requirement to use the premises it is unlikely that such a premises 
would meet the definition of a community premises and permission to remove the 
requirement for a DPS is likely to be refused. 

 

15.4 In general it is expected that premises that form part of a church hall or chapel hall or 
are a village or community hall would in most cases meet the definition of a 
community premises, although each will be considered on its individual merits and 
the evidence provided or obtained. 

 

15.5 The licensing officers will consider, on a case by case basis, all applications to 
remove the mandatory condition and will ask such questions or seek the necessary 
evidence to confirm the suitability of the management committee to collectively 
authorise the alcohol sales. 

 

15.6 Committees that make an application will be expected to have members who are 
aware of the law relating to the sale of alcohol, contain steps within their operating 
schedule to prevent offences relating to alcohol sales and also to include appropriate 
rules in hiring agreements where the premises is hired out to the public for events 
that will involve the sale of alcohol. 

 

16 HEARINGS 
 

16.1.1 Any application that has resulted in the submission of relevant representations from 
any party will be referred to the Licensing Sub-Committee for a hearing and 
determination in accordance with the 2003 Act and the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005. 

 

16.2 A Sub-Committee will consist of three suitably trained members of the Licensing 
Committee. No Members will serve on a Sub-Committee involving an application for 
a licence or certificate within their own ward. The Sub-Committee will be advised on 
the legislation by a representative from the Legal Services Partnership. That 
representative will not usually have been involved in the application process to 
prevent a conflict of interest by ensuring a clear separation of roles. 

 

16.3 This Policy will play a key role in achieving consistency in decision. 
 

16.4 Where representations are made only by Responsible Authorities, the Licensing 
Authority would expect applicants and Responsible Authorities to enter into 
negotiation or mediation prior to a hearing in an attempt to resolve issues before 
attending the licensing hearing. 

Page 40

Appendix A



October 2015  

16.5 Where mediation is successful and a hearing is deemed unnecessary by all parties 
the mediation outcome will be presented to the licensing Sub-Committee in writing 
and signed by all parties for ratification and determination1. The Sub-Committee may 
still determine that the addition of appropriate licence conditions at the determination 
stage. 

 

16.6 Parties will be advised of the hearing date and procedure in advance and in 
accordance with the statutory process. At all hearings the sub-committee will have 
regard to the Guidance issued under section 182 of the Act. This authority may use 
its discretion where there are strong and defensible reasons for departing from the 
Guidance and where it considers it right to do so. In any such case this authority will 
clearly express and explain its reasons for doing so. 

 

16.7 The Licensing Authority must give the appropriate amount of weight to 
representations made by the Police on crime and disorder matters. It will give 
appropriate weight to all representations made by all parties based on the content 
and relevance to the promotion of all licensing objectives. 

 

16.8 All decision notices will be in writing and will include clearly stated reasons to explain 
a decision on an application. 

 
17 LICENCE CONDITIONS 

17.1 A key concept in the Licensing Act is that conditions that are attached to licences or 
certificates are tailored to suit the individual style and characteristics of the premises 
and its activities and the impact of those activities. Those conditions will be deemed 
appropriate and proportionate in order to promote the licensing objectives at that 
premises. 

 

17.2 All licences that authorise the sale of alcohol will be subject to the mandatory 
conditions set out in the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 
2010 and 2014 (and any subsequent Mandatory Conditions that are introduced). The 
Mandatory Conditions apply irrespective of whether they are printed on the certificate 
or licence. 

 

17.3 Applicants will be expected to include appropriate steps within their operating 
schedule which will be interpreted in accordance with the applicant’s intention and 
then converted to conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate. 
Those steps will be expected to be achievable, enforceable and relevant to the 
business in question and will ensure the promotion of each of the four licensing 
objectives. 

 

17.4 Where applications receive valid representations and are subject to a hearing, the 
sub-committee will consider the evidence provided within representations, the detail 
of the application, the nature of the premises and business and only where 
appropriate will attach conditions to a licence to secure the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in light of the evidence provided. 

 

17.5 Decisions on individual licence conditions will be made on a case by case basis, and 
where there are concerns over the effective promotion of the licensing objectives, the 
applicant will be expected to offer suggestions on how the objectives can be met. 
This authority will work closely with all parties and the applicant in establishing 
workable, enforceable and reasonable conditions for new and variation applications. 

 

 
1 
Not applicable to applications for a review of a Premises Licence or a Club Premises Certificate 

Page 41

Appendix A



October 2015  

17.6 In all cases the Licensing Authority will have regard to the Guidance when 
considering the implementation of licence conditions. 

 

17.7 In all cases conditions will aim to promote the licensing objectives, be unambiguous 
and enforceable, appropriate to the activities and the business, achievable and 
applicable to the premises and the areas around the premises which is within the 
licence holders control. 

 

17.8 The Licensing Authority recognises the need to avoid, so far as possible, duplication 
with other regulatory systems including Health and Safety at Work, Fire Safety, Food 
Hygiene and Nuisance Control. However these regulations may not cover the unique 
circumstances of some activities and entertainment. In these circumstances, the 
council may therefore, where necessary, attach conditions to premises licenses for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 

17.9 CONDITIONS TO PROMOTE THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER. 
 

Under the Act the Licensing Authority has a duty to promote the licensing objectives, 
and, a further duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably can 
to prevent crime and disorder in the borough. 

 

17.10 The applicant will be expected to detail in their operating schedule how they will 
prevent crime and disorder on and close to the premises. Such detail should reflect 
the licensable activities on offer, location and character of the area, the nature of the 
premises use and the range of customers likely to use the premises. 

 

These may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

• Prevention of disorderly conduct and anti-social behaviour 
 

• Prevention of underage drinking 
 

• Prevention of sales of alcohol to intoxicated customers 
 

• Prevention of drunkenness both on and in the vicinity of the premises 
 

• Prevention of drug use and drug dealing 
 

• Restriction of drinks promotions 
 

• Use of safety glass 
 

• Inclusion of a wind-down time following alcohol sales period 
 

• Adequate seating to discourage “vertical drinking” 
 

• The offer of food and snacks or other entertainment or occupation to 
discourage persistent drinking 

 

17.11 In busier premises the Licensing Authority would expect to see a short (say 30mins) 
‘wind down’ or ‘drinking up’ period allowed for after the cessation time of 
entertainment and alcohol sales as this is effective in assisting in a reduction in noise 
and exuberance of customers before leaving the premises. 

Page 42

Appendix A



October 2015  

Where the Licensing Authority determines after consultation with the police that a 
premises is one that warrants additional security and monitoring it would expect 
applicants to include the provision. . Where door staff is to be provided, it is a 
Mandatory Condition that the said door staff are SIA approved. Relevant premises 
are usually those used mainly for drinking alcohol, have later opening hours and are 
situated within the Town Centre night time economy area. Applicants will be 
expected to seek advice from the Police and the Licensing Authority. The Licensing 
Authority will follow the Guidance issued under s.182 (as amended) with regards to 
representations made by the Police in respect of crime and disorder. Where 
appropriate, applicants for licences in the Town Centre areas providing mainly 
alcohol, music and dancing would be expected to include a provision of safety 
glasses to prevent a risk of injury on the rare occasion that a glass may be used as a 
weapon. 

 

17.12 The use of CCTV should be considered where appropriate or on the advice and 
recommendations of the Police and to a quality and standard approved by the Police 
for evidence purposes. Licensees will be expected to fully comply with the 
requirements of the Information Commissioners Office and the Data Protection Act 
1998 in respect of any surveillance equipment installed at a premises. 

 

17.13 In any application the sub-committee will consider each application on its individual 
merits and determine the imposition of conditions that are appropriate to the 
objectives. 

 

17.14 CONDITIONS TO PROMOTE PUBLIC SAFETY. 

 
The applicant will be expected to show that the physical safety of persons attending 
the premises will be protected and will offer relevant steps in the operating schedule 
to promote this. 

17.15 Such steps will not replace the statutory obligation on the applicant to comply with 
all relevant legislation under the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1973 or under 
the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2004. 

17.16 Applicants will be expected to have carried out the necessary risk assessments to 
ensure safe occupancy levels for the premises. Where a representation from the Fire 
Authority suggests that for the promotion of the Public Safety objective a maximum 
occupancy should be applied, the Licensing Authority will consider adding such a 
limit as a licence condition. 

 

It is expected that an operating schedule will specify occupancy limits for the 
following types of licensed premises: 

 

(i) High Volume Vertical Drinking e.g. premises that provide mainly stand up 
drinking facilities with limited seating/table space and the prime activity is the 
sale of alcohol 

 

(ii) Nightclubs 
 

(iii) Cinemas 
 

(iv) Theatres 
 

(v) Other premises where regulated entertainment is likely to attract a large number 
of people. 

Page 43

Appendix A



October 2015  

 
 

17.17 CONDITIONS TO PROMOTE THE PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE. 
 

The applicant will be expected to detail steps to prevent nuisance and disturbance 
arising from the licensable activities at the premises and from the customers using 
the premises. 

 

17.18 The applicant will be expected to demonstrate that they have considered the 
following and included steps to prevent public nuisance: 

 

(i) Proximity of local residents to the premises 
 

(ii) Licensable activities proposed and customer base 
 

(iii) Hours and nature of operation 
 

(iv) Risk and prevention of noise leakage from the premises from equipment, 
customers and machinery 

 

(v) Prevention of noise from customers leaving the premises and customer pick 
up points outside premises and from the Car Park. 

 

(vi) Availability of public transport to and from the premises 
 

(vii) Noise from use of the garden/outside space including smoking shelters. 
 

(viii) Delivery and collection times and locations. 
 

(ix) Impact of external security or general lighting on residents. 
 

(x) History of management of and complaints about the premises. 
 

(xi) Applicant’s previous success in preventing Public Nuisance. 
 

(xii) Outcomes of discussions with the relevant Responsible Authorities. 
 

(xiii) Impact of location, noise and contamination from outside smoking areas on 
neighbours and other customers 

 

(xiv) Collection of litter arising from the premises 
 

17.19 Steps to prevent public nuisance may include a range of options including noise 
limiting devices, sound insulation, wind down periods, acoustic lobbies, management 
of smoking areas etc. 

 

17.20 Steps will differ depending on the individual premises and activities and it is for the 
applicant to ensure that reasonable, effective and appropriate steps are included 
within the operating schedule. 

Page 44

Appendix A



October 2015  

17.21 CONDITIONS TO PROMOTE THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM. 
 

Applicants will be expected to detail steps to protect children at the premises from 
any harm. The Licensing Authority recognises the right of licensees (serving alcohol) 
to allow accompanied children into their premises. The Licensing Authority would not 
seek to restrict access by children (above that specified in the Act) unless it is 
necessary for the prevention of physical, moral or psychological harm. 

 

17.22 Steps to prevent children from harm must be included where: 
 

(i) There is entertainment or services of an adult nature provided. 
 

(ii) There have been previous convictions for under age sales of alcohol. 
 

(iii) There is a known association with drug taking or dealing. 
 

(iv) There is a significant element of gambling on the premises. 
 

(v) There is a presumption that children under 18 should not be permitted entry 
such as to nightclubs (apart from when specific events are held for under 
18’s). 

 

(vi) Outcomes of discussions with relevant Responsible Authorities suggest such 
steps are applicable. 

 

17.23 Nothing in the Licensing Act prevents licensees from excluding children from a 
licensed premises and no condition can be added to require the admission of 
children. 

 

17.24 Where there are no matters that give rise to concern in respect of children at 
premises the Licensing Authority would expect to see the relevant box on an 
application form completed to specify NONE. 

 

18 PERSONAL LICENCES 
 

18.1 Any person who wishes to act as a DPS at licensed premises must be in possession 
of a personal licence issued under the Licensing Act 2003. Any other person may 
also apply for a personal licence subject to meeting the necessary criteria. The 
Licensing Authority acknowledges the default grant position for applicants who meet 
the statutory criteria under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

18.2 The Police will only be consulted where the applicant declares a previous conviction 
for a relevant offence. A relevant conviction is one that is listed on Schedule 4 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

 

18.3 Where a representation is received from the Police the Licensing Authority 
acknowledges that it has discretion whether or not to grant the licence. 

 

18.4 Where a representation is received from the Police objecting to an application for a 
personal licence, and that representation is deemed relevant by the licensing team in 
that there is a belief that granting the licence will undermine the prevention of Crime 
and Disorder Licensing objective, the application will be referred to the Licensing 
Sub-Committee for determination at a hearing where the Licensing Sub-Committee 
will either grant or refuse the application. 

Page 45

Appendix A



October 2015  

18.5 The Police must give a notice of objection to the Licensing Authority within the 
statutory 14 day consultation period. The Licensing Authority accepts that there is no 
discretion to accept a late notification from the Police even if the objection provided 
evidence that to grant the licence would undermine the crime prevention objective. 

 

18.6 The Licensing Authority requires all personal licence holders to advise it each time 
there is a change of their name or address. All licence holders are advised of this 
requirement when a licence is granted. Any changes will be updated and an 
amended licence will be issued within 20 working days of a notification of change. 

 

18.7 The Licensing Authority anticipates that the Magistrates and Crown Courts will take 
appropriate action in relation to a personal licence where licence holders are 
convicted of relevant offences in those courts after the grant of a personal licence 
and to notify the Licensing Authority of any action taken in respect of a personal 
licence. 

 

18.8 The Licensing Authority requires personal licence holders to undertake their duty to 
disclose any convictions for a relevant offence after a personal licence has been 
granted. The Licensing Authority and/or the Police will take appropriate formal action 
against the licence holder where subsequent relevant convictions are not declared 
under that duty. 

 

19 TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICES 
 

19.1 The Licensing Act 2003 makes provision for the authorisation of a person (known as 
a premises user) to provide licensable activities on a temporary basis at unlicensed 
premises, or to add activities and/or extend the hours of existing activities at a 
licensed premises. The activities are authorised by the serving of a Temporary Event 
Notice (TEN) on the Licensing Authority, subject to the notice meeting the proper 
criteria as detailed under the Act. 

 

19.2 Comprehensive planning of events is essential and where there are likely to be 
impacts on neighbouring residents or businesses as a result of the activities to be 
authorised by a TEN, the Licensing Authority expects the premises user to have 
advised those residents and businesses and considered any potential impacts and 
how they may be mitigated. 

 

19.3 The Licensing Authority welcomes requests for advice from applicants who wish to 
provide temporary events to ensure they understand the law relating to such events 
and to reduce the likelihood of objections being made. 

 

19.4 There are two types of TEN, Standard or Late. Both are subject to a numerical limit 
on the number of each type of TEN that can be served by personal licence holders 
and non-personal licence holders in a calendar year i.e. Jan-Dec. There is also a 
numerical limitation on the number of TENs that may be served in respect of 
individual premises or place. 

 

19.5 Standard TEN. A standard TEN must be served at least 10 working days (Monday 
to Friday excluding Bank Holidays) before the event commences. The 10 working 
days excludes the day of service and the day on which the event starts. Copies of 
the TEN must be served on the Licensing Authority, The Environmental Health (EH) 
Department, and the Police. The fee is payable only to the Licensing Authority. 
Applicants are encouraged to serve TENs at least 28 days before the proposed 
events to allow greater time for an event to be planned. 

Page 46

Appendix A



October 2015  

19.6 Where numerical limits are exceeded the Licensing Authority will serve a counter 
notice and the proposed licensable activities will not be authorised. 

 

19.7 Where objections are received from the Police and/or EH and not withdrawn, the 
notice will be referred for a hearing before the Licensing Sub-Committee. The Sub- 
Committee may approve the TEN as applied for, add appropriate conditions (if the 
TEN takes place on a premises with an existing premises licence) or reject a TEN by 
serving a counter notice. 

 

19.8 Late TEN. A late TEN may be served between 9 and 5 working days before a 
proposed event commences. The same limitations apply to the day the notice was 
served and the day of the event. Where numerical limits are exceeded a counter 
notice will be served and the proposed licensable activities will not be authorised. 

 

19.9 If the late TEN is served with fewer than 5 working days’ notice it is deemed invalid 
and would be rejected The proposed activities would not be authorised. The 
Licensing Authority has no discretion to accept TENs outside the permitted statutory 
deadlines. 

 

19.10 Where an objection notice is given by the Police or EH in respect of a late TEN, the 
TEN will be rejected and proposed activities will be unauthorised. A refund of the fee 
will not be made. 

 

19.11 The Licensing Authority will take the appropriate action where there is evidence that 
licensable activities have been provided without the authorisation of a TEN. 

 

19.12 There are restrictions on the numbers of each type of TEN that can be submitted. 
 

19.13 It should be noted that if a TEN has been processed and is no longer required the fee 
will not be refunded as the Licensing Authority has already carried out its obligations. 

 

20 OUTDOOR EVENTS 
 

20.1 The general terminal hour for all licensable activities shall be 23:00 at outdoor events;  
 
20.2 Organisers/applicants shall demonstrate that they have the required permissions in place to use 

the land (whether private land or on Council owned land);  
 
20.3 Organisers/applicants shall demonstrate that they have arrangements in place to ensure the site 

is properly checked and certified (for example, if water supplies or electrics need to be safety 
checked); and 

 
20.4 Organisers / applicants using Council owned land will demonstrate that they have notified and 

where necessary sought authorisation / advice from the relevant Council departments (for 
example, the Parks and Open Spaces, Highways etc. ).    
 

21 OTHER RELEVANT MATTERS 
 

21.1 Adult entertainment. The Licensing Authority has adopted Schedule 4 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 and premises offering regular 
entertainment of a sexual nature must be licensed as a sex establishment under 
those provisions. 

 

21.2 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that exemptions under the above legislation 
do allow sexual entertainment to be provided at premises licensed under the 
Licensing Act 2003, as long as it is provided on no more than 11 occasions within 12 
months and with at least one month between each occasion. Those infrequent 

Page 47

Appendix A



October 2015  

events will be regulated by the licence granted under the Licensing Act 2003 where 
that licence authorises performances of dance. 

 

21.3 Gaming machines in licensed premises - Automatic entitlement. There is 
provision in the Gambling Act 2005 (GA2005) for premises licensed to sell alcohol for 
consumption on the premises to automatically have two gaming machines of 
category C and/or D. The premises licence holder merely needs to notify this 
Licensing Authority and pay the prescribed fee. 

 

21.4 This authority can remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular 
premises if: 

 

 provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the 
licensing objectives (under the GA2005); 

 gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of section 
282 of the GA2005 (for example, the gaming machines have been made 
available in a way that does not comply with requirements on the location and 
operation of gaming machines); 

 

 the premises are mainly used for gaming; or 
 

 an offence under the GA2005 has been committed on the premises. 
 

20.4 Gaming Machine Permit – If a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines of 
categories C and/or D, then it needs to apply for a permit and this authority will 
consider that application based upon the licensing objectives, any guidance issued 
by the Gambling Commission under section 25 of the Act, and such matters as 
officers consider relevant. 

 

20.5 In determining such matters, consideration will be given to the need to protect 
children from harm and to the need to protect vulnerable persons from harm or being 
exploited by gambling. The applicant will be required to satisfy the authority that 
there will be sufficient measures to ensure that minors do not have access to the 
adult only gaming machines. 

 

20.6 Measures to satisfy the authority relate to restricting access to age restricted 
machines and adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in sight of staff who will 
monitor that the machines are not being used by minors. Notices and signage should 
also be displayed to this effect. Applicants may consider the provision of information 
leaflets and helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare to demonstrate 
their responsibility in the protection of vulnerable persons and compliance with Codes 
of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission. 

 

20.7 Gambling in alcohol ‘On’ licensed premises. Exempt gaming is equal chance 
gaming that is generally permissible in any club or alcohol licensed premises. Equal 
chance gaming includes games such as backgammon, mah-jong, rummy, kalooki, 
dominoes, cribbage, bingo and poker. Such gaming should be ancillary to the 
purposes of the premises. 

 

20.8 This exemption is automatically available to all clubs or alcohol licensed premises, 
but is subject to statutory stakes and prize limits determined by the Secretary of 
State. Licensees are expected to seek advice from the Gambling Commission at 
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk or this Licensing Authority before providing any 
forms of gambling at alcohol licensed premises. 

 

20.9 Licensees will be expected to make appropriate arrangements for customers who 
wish to smoke outside the premises to ensure that the licensed pavement area is not 

Page 48

Appendix A

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


October 2015  

also used as the allocated smoking area. This is to prevent nuisance and potential 
ill-health to non-smokers who wish to use the outside seating. 

 

21 INFORMATION 
 

21.1 In order to ensure that applicants and persons who make representations have the 
necessary information to be able to do so, information is available on the Tunbridge 
Wells Borough Council’s website www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk or by contacting the 
licensing Partnership administration team by email licensing@sevenoaks.gov.uk or 
by telephone on 01732 227004. 

Page 49

Appendix A

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/
mailto:licensing@sevenoaks.gov.uk


October 2015  

Appendix A 

Contact details of Local Authority Licensing Department 
 

 

Sharon Degiorgio 
Senior Licensing Officer for Tunbridge 
Wells Borough Council 
email: 
sharon.degiorgio@tunbridgewells.gov.uk 

 

Telephone:01892 554034 

 
 

Claire Perry 
Licensing Partnership Manager 
Email: claire.perry@sevenoaks.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01732 227325 

 

Dave Packham 
Licensing Officer for Tunbridge Wells 
Borough Council 
email: 
dave.packham@tunbridgewells.gov.uk 

 

Telephone: 01892 554034 

 

Licensing Department 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Town Hall 
Royal Tunbridge Wells 
Kent 
TN1 1RS 

 
Web: www.tunbridgwells.gov.uk 
Email: licensing@tunbridgwells.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01892 554034 

 

Licensing Partnership 
Sevenoaks District Council 
Council Offices 
PO Box 182 
Argyle Road 
Sevenoaks 
Kent TN13 1GP 

 
Web; www.sevenoaks.gov.uk/business/licencesandpermits 
Email: licensing@sevenoaks.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01732 227004 

 
See the Tunbridge Wells Borough Council Website www.tunbridgewellsgov.uk for details of 
the Town and Parish Councils within the Borough. Details of your local Councillors may also 
be obtained from the website. 

 

Information on licensing applications being processed is available on the licensing 
pages of Tunbridge Wells Borough Council’ website www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk or 
the Licensing Partnership website at Sevenoaks District Council’s website 
www.sevenoaks.gov.uk 

Page 50

Appendix A

mailto:sharon.degiorgio@tunbridgewells.gov.uk
mailto:claire.perry@sevenoaks.gov.uk
mailto:dave.packham@tunbridgewells.gov.uk
http://www.tunbridgwells.gov.uk/
mailto:licensing@tunbridgwells.gov.uk
http://www.sevenoaks.gov.uk/business/licencesandpermits
mailto:licensing@sevenoaks.gov.uk
http://www.tunbridgewellsgov.uk/
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/
http://www.sevenoaks.gov.uk/


October 2015  

Appendix B 

Responsible Authorities 
 

Environmental Protection 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Town Hall 
Royal Tunbridge Wells 
Kent 
TN1 1RS 
Tel:: 01892 526 121 Email: 
envprotection@midkent.gov.uk 

Health and Safety 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Town Hall 
Royal Tunbridge Wells 
Kent 
TN1 1RS 
Tel:01892 526212 
food&commercial@tunbridgewells.gov.uk 

Health & Safety Executive 
International House 
Dover Place 
Ashford 
TN23 1HU 

 

Tel 01233 653900 
www.hse.gov.uk 

Local Planning Authority 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Town Hall 
Royal Tunbridge Wells 
Kent TN1 1RS 

 

Tel: 01892 526 121 
planning@tunbridgewells.gov.uk 

West Kent Fire Safety Office 
Tonbridge Fire Station 
424 Vale Road 
Tonbridge 
Kent TN9 1SW 

 

Email tfs.midgroup@kent.fire-uk.org 

Tel: 01622 692 121 

West Kent Licensing Officer 
Ellen Shaw 
Community Safety Unit 
Kingshill 
Gibson Building 
Gibson Drive 
West Malling ME19 4LZ 

Tel: 01732 379 255 

Email west.division.licensing@kent.pnn.police.uk 

Trading Standards 
Kent County Council 
1st Floor, Invicta House 
County Hall 
Maidstone 
Kent ME14 1XX 

 

Tel: 01622 221012 
Email trading.standards@kent.gov.uk 

Kent Child Protection Committee 
Children’s and Families 
KCC Social Services 
Sessions House, Room 2.60 
County Road 
Maidstone 
Kent ME14 1XQ 

 
Website www.kcpc.org.uk 
Email social.services@kent.gov.uk 

Kent Public Health Department 
Room 3.45, Sessions House 
County Hall, County Road 
Maidstone 
ME14 1XQ 

 

Tel: 0300 333 6379 
www.kent.gov.uk 

 

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) 
Alcohol Licensing Team 
Lunar House 
40 Wellesley Road 
Croydon 
CR9 2BY 

Page 51

Appendix A

mailto:envprotection@midkent.gov.uk
mailto:food%26commercial@tunbridgewells.gov.uk
http://www.hse.gov.uk/
mailto:planning@tunbridgewells.gov.uk
mailto:tfs.midgroup@kent.fire-uk.org
mailto:west.division.licensing@kent.pnn.police.uk
mailto:trading.standards@kent.gov.uk
http://www.kcpc.org.uk/
mailto:social.services@kent.gov.uk
http://www.kent.gov.uk/


October 2015  

Appendix C 
 

References to guides of best practice 

Good Practice Guide on the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by 
Institute of Acoustics 
www.ioa.org.uk 

 
 

Good Practice Guide: Licensing published jointly by the Justices’ Clerks’ Society and the 
Magistrates’ Association (April 1999) 
www.magistrates-association.org.uk 

 
 

The National Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy Toolkit 
www.alcoholconcern.org.uk 

 
 

The Point of Sale Promotions published by BBPA 
www.beerandpub.com 

 
 

Public Places Charter 
www.ash.org.uk 

 
 

Tunbridge Wells Night Time Co-ordinator 
pubwatch@twstp.co.uk 

 
 

National Pub Watch 
www.nationalpubwatch.org.uk 

Page 52

Appendix A

http://www.ioa.org.uk/
http://www.magistrates-association.org.uk/
http://www.alcoholconcern.org.uk/
http://www.beerandpub.com/
http://www.ash.org.uk/
mailto:pubwatch@twstp.co.uk
http://www.nationalpubwatch.org.uk/


October 2015  

Appendix D 
 

Contact details and useful addresses (e.g. Chamber of Trade, BBPA, 
BII, SIA etc.) 

 

 

West Kent Chamber of Commerce 
Castle Lodge 
Castle Street 
Tonbridge 
Kent 
TN9 1BH 

 

Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) 
Customer services 
PO Box 165 
Liverpool 
L69 3JD 
Information line: 0870 90 90 811 
Website: https://www.gov.uk/disclosure- 
barring-service 

 

British Beer & Pub Association 
Ground Floor 
Brewers’ Hall 
Aldermanbury Square 
London 
EC2V 7HR 
Tel:  020 7627 9191 
Fax: 020 7627 9123 
contact@beerandpub.com 

 
Press Office: 020 7627 9199 

 

British Institute of Inn keeping (BII) 
Wessex House 
80 Park Street 
Camberley 
Surrey. GU15 3PT 
Tel: 01276 684 449 
Fax: 01276 23045 
www.bii.org 
Email: reception@bii.org 

 

SIA 
PO Box 49768 
London. WC1 V6WY 
Website: www.the-sia.org.uk 

 

Tel: 0844 892 1025 
Fax: 0844 892 0975 

Page 53

Appendix A

https://www.gov.uk/disclosure-barring-service
https://www.gov.uk/disclosure-barring-service
mailto:contact@beerandpub.com
http://www.bii.org/
mailto:reception@bii.org
http://www.the-sia.org.uk/


October 2015  

Appendix F 
 

Recommended delegation of functions 
 

Matter to be dealt with Full 
Committee 

Sub Committee Officers 

Application for personal 
licence 

 If a police objection If no objection made 

Application for premises 
licence/club premises 
certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation made 

If no relevant 
representation made 

Application for provisional 
statement 

 If a relevant 
representation made 

If no relevant 
representation made 

Application to vary 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation made 

If no relevant 
representation made 

Application to vary 
designated premises 
supervisor 

 If a police objection If no objection made 

Request to be removed as 
designated premises 
supervisor 

  All cases 

Application for transfer of 
premises licence 

 If a police objection If no objection made 

Applications for interim 
authorities 

 If a police objection If no objection made 

Application to review 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 All cases  

Decision on whether a 
complaint is irrelevant, 
frivolous, vexatious etc. 

  All cases 

Decision to object when 
Local Authority is a 
consultee and not the 
relevant authority 
considering the application 

 All cases  

Determination of a police 
objection to a temporary 
event notice 

 All cases  

Application for a minor 
variation 

  All cases 

 

Page 54

Appendix A



APPENDIX  B

Page 55

Appendix B



Page 56

Appendix B



 

Licensing Committee 17 September 2019 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? Yes 

 

Licensing Partnership Update Report 2019 
 

Final Decision-Maker Licensing Committee 

Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for Sustainability 

Lead Director Paul Taylor – Director of Change and Communities 
 

Head of Service Gary Stevenson - Head of Housing, Health and 
Environment 

Lead Officer/Report Author Sharon Bamborough – Head of Licensing 
Partnership 

Classification Non-exempt  

Wards affected All 

 

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 

1. For information only  

 

This report relates to the following Five Year Plan Key Objectives: 

 To ensure effective partnership working  

  

Timetable 

Meeting Date 

Council  n/a 

Other committees n/a 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



 

Licensing Partnership Update Report 2019 

 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Council is a member of the Licensing Partnership with Sevenoaks District 

Council, Maidstone Borough Council and London Borough of Bexley, which 
provides line management responsibilities to their respective licensing 
enforcement teams and an administration team at Sevenoaks to carry out the 
processing of licence applications, notices, permits and representations. 

 
1.2 The Licensing Partnership has completed 9 years of working together, with 

London Borough of Bexley becoming a partner as of 31st October 2016. 
 
1.3 This arrangement provides each council with sovereignty over its policies and 

decision making processes whilst operating within a partnership that gives 
resilience and capacity to deal with the fluctuating demands on the service 
through the year. 

 
1.4 This report is an annual update on the performance and activity of the 

Licensing Partnership. 
 
1.5 In 2009 it was agreed that both the line management and administration of the 

Council’s licensing processes would be undertaken in partnership with 
Maidstone Borough Council (MBC) and Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
(TWBC). It was agreed that the administrative team processing licensing 
application would be based at the offices of Sevenoaks District Council (SDC) 
with Licensing Officers continuing to be based at each council. 

 
1.6 Each Council retained responsibility for setting its licensing policies, 

compliance strategies and decision making at Sub and Full Licensing 
Committees. The Licensing Partnership Manager had line management 
responsibility for the operation of the administration team and the Licensing 
Officers of the three councils. 

 
1.7 In January 2010 the new Licensing Partnership took effect and the back office 

functions started to be transferred to the administration team based at SDC. 
The Licensing Partnership uses a single database to maintain the licensing 
records for the three authorities. The database structure enables reporting to 
be carried out on an individual basis and allows for the variances that still exist 
in the policies and procedures of the three authorities. 

 
1.8 The Licensing Partnership is governed by an agreement made between the 

three councils and the Chief Officer/Heads of Service responsible for licensing 
at their respective authorities meet four times a year as a Licensing 
Partnership Board to oversee performance and the direction of the 
Partnership. John Littlemore, Head of Housing and Community Services at 
Maidstone Borough Council is currently the Chair of the Licensing Partnership 
Board. 

Page 58

Agenda Item 7



 

 
1.9 In May 2017, the Licensing Partnership Manger tragically and suddenly 

passed away, causing an unanticipated but understandable huge impact on 
the management and performance of the partnership. The Admin Hub Team 
at Sevenoaks concentrated on trying to ensure they continued on with the day 
to day work, and the new Head of the Licensing partnership has been in post 
since 30th October 2017. The intervening period had, naturally, upset the 
usual performance and scrutiny, but performance is back on track.  

 
1.10 The new Head of the Licensing Partnership, Sharon Bamborough, comes 

from a London local authority background.  
 

 
2. 2018-2019 PERFORMANCE 
 
2.1 The performance of the Licensing Partnership has been generally high 

performing despite many challenges of the past year, which included:  
 

 Tri-annual review of gambling policy, 

 the introduction of new Animal licensing legislation (very late in the 
day by DEFRA) which created a considerable amount of work, and  

 staff turnover within the Hub team.  
 
 The indicators for each of the four authorities are attached as Appendix A. 

 
2.2 The Hub team at Sevenoaks has gone through a number of staff changes 

(mainly due to staff leaving for promotion/progression elsewhere) which has 
meant that the team has had many new officers trying to learn the job which is 
a very demanding role in respect of the information they are expected to 
absorb and processes they need to learn (in the last year there have been 4 
new members of staff on a team of six officers). 
 

2.3 The general processing and consultation on applications within timeframe has 
been maintained but there will have been times when performance has 
slipped due to staff shortages and lack of fully trained team (annual leave 
etc.)  
 

2.4 In respect of compliance/enforcement work, following a revision of the 
performance measures by the Head of the Partnership in July 2018, much 
more of the workload of the officers is being reported which is reflective of the 
total work carried out (previously only compliance visits were being reported).  
Now, all investigations of complaints and requests for advice/ information and 
other site visits are reported in addition to the number of premises compliance 
visits. 
 

2.5 In respect of the applications outstanding more than a month after 
consultation – this generally occurs when the application needs to be referred 
to a hearing and performance on this has improved compared to the previous 
year. 
 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



 

Key Achievements 
 

2.6 The The Partnership handled a very large amount of work in 2018/19. The 
performance measures should be read in conjunction with the entire volumes 
of work delivered.  The headlines of the performance are as follows: 
 

 In this time period, over 7700 applications, notices, permits and pieces 
of work were received and carried out.   

 From this total, 2215 pieces of work were for Tunbridge Wells.  

 Taking into account the different amounts of time needed for different 
types of applications, and the differing nature of the work carried out 
for some of the partners, Tunbridge Well’s share accounted for almost 
29% of the work of the entire partnership in 2018/19.  

 Over 20,000 emails were received in the main Licensing inbox and 
actioned for all four partners  

 
 

2.7 The introduction of the new Animal Welfare Regulations 2018 legislation 
replaced the majority of existing animal licensing (including animal boarding, 
dog breeding, hiring of horses, exhibition of animals, selling animals as pets) 
but it also included new areas previously un-licensable (dog day care/home 
boarding) and tightened up the rules and standards for all. This was 
introduced at very short notice by DEFRA (first guidance documents were 
released in August 2018 for the new legislation coming in from 1st October 
2018, application forms were released approximately 2 weeks before the 
implementation date) which lead to a rush to understand the new regulations, 
to set fees, create new procedures and to handle all new applications from 
existing licensees and new operators. This created a very large demand of 
enquiries and interest from public and interested bodies. The additional work 
caught out every local authority and was the subject of much debate and 
challenge (of DEFRA) at the national Institute of Licensing conference in 
November 2018. The impact was substantial.   
 
The Partnership handles animal licensing for three of the four partners and 
although it does not do it for Tunbridge Wells (because it sits within 
Environmental Health) it never the less had a large impact on the Hub team 
work for the rest of the partners and should be acknowledged as part of the 
work of the entire partnership. We have now successfully licensed over 100 
premises.   
 

2.8 We have been part of a successful funding bid to Government (lead by Kent 
CC) to give funding for the installation of electric chargers for Ultra Low 
Emissions Vehicles (ULEVs) used by the taxi trade. Each of the Partners 
Sevenoaks, Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells will be funded to install one 
charging point for exclusive use by the taxi trade. The purpose of this initiative 
is to encourage more of the taxi trade to switch over to ULEVs and thereby 
contribute to cleaner air in the Environment. The chargers need to be installed 
by end of March 2020 under the conditions of the grant.  
 

2.9 In July 2017, a new online taxi knowledge test was implemented across the 
partnership, introducing a new form of standardised test for the three partners 

Page 60

Agenda Item 7



 

dealing with taxi licensing and a raising of standards.  For the first time for 
some, private hire drivers were required to pass the test, bringing them up to 
a standard with hackney carriage drivers. The application process has also 
been change to require successful completion of the test before an 
application may be submitted, thereby reducing the number of applications 
which could not be progressed due to failed tests.   
 

2.10 Having reviewed the test results since implementation, it has become clear 
that pass rates are not as hoped for (though this does keep up a high 
standard) and the test was revised to make it clearer and easier to pass 
without dropping the standards, and this was implemented Autumn  2018. 
The pass rate has subsequently improved. 
 

2.11 The Metropolitan Police and Kent  Police initiative WAVE (Welfare and 
Vulnerability Engagement), which seeks to educate and re-train all involved in 
the licensing industry about being more proactive in spotting vulnerable 
people who should be assisted when in licensed premises, was promoted to 
our alcohol-licensed premises.  
 

 
3. PERFORMANCE AGAINST SERVICE PLAN OBJECTIVES FOR 2018/19  
 
 
3.1 Objective 1 - To manage the Licensing Partnership to deliver efficiency 

savings and achieve performance targets. 
 
This is ongoing and performance is monitored on a weekly and monthly basis. 
 
1:1 meetings with staff are carried out monthly and the Licensing Partnership 
Board meets 4 times a year. 
 

3.2 Objective 2 - Investigate further undertaking of licensing functions for other 
local authorities. 
 
Result: A great deal of time was spent in talks over the year with Bromley – 
much work was done by the Head of Licensing to calculate quotes, model 
different options and liaise with their Head of Service, Finance and HR staff. 
After a lot of delay Bromley eventually advised they did not wish to pursue 
joining the partnership.  
 

3.3 Objective 3 - Seek further efficiency savings in processes and use of online 
facilities. 
 

 Introduce electronic issue of licences for premises licensing  –  
result: Introduced towards end of year. 

 Update Document Retention Policy and get rid of hard copy duplicate 
filing system   
result: achieved (resulting in time savings and reduction in costs)  

 Reduce the face to face interaction for Licensing Partnership staff by 
implementing scripts to enable customer service staff to assist 
licensees in their requirements  

Page 61

Agenda Item 7



 

result: carried over to 2019/20 service plan due to project delay at 
Sevenoaks to include Licensing (not within our control) however we 
have implemented other changes to achieve this including 
appointment only system set up in Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells; 
drivers making own appointments with garages to avoid needing to call 
hub team 

 
3.4 Objective 4 - Ensure all online forms are implemented and in use by 

customers and explore other software solutions  
 

 The library of on line forms should implemented across the four 
partners – to include new forms for Bexley (Special Treatments) and 
any updates needed for existing ones 
Result: most forms now online and more are to be developed (e.g. 
special treatments)   

 Arrange for purchase and installation of electronic record management 
system, Enterprise (from Idox) 
Result: this had to be put on hold due to a pre-planned server move 
by Idox and Sevenoaks IT (out of our control) – it is carried over to the 
2019/20 service plan 

 Arrange for purchase and installation of electronic enforcement 
software for use out and about, called Mobile App (from Idox) 
Result: this had to be put on hold due to a pre-planned server move 
by Idox and Sevenoaks IT (out of our control) – it is carried over to the 
2019/20 service plan 

 
3.5 Objective 5 - Undertake a programme of training for Members and officers. 

Ensure all new Members on each Licensing Committee receive appropriate 
training. 
 
    Result: training has been given as and when required 
 
 

3.6 Objective 6 - Revision of Policies & Procedures  
 

 Review Gambling Policies across the Partnership in readiness for 
January 2019 when they must come into force 
Result: achieved 

 Review Street trading policy at Maidstone regarding designation of 
street trading pitches  
Result: carried over to 2019/20 service plan at request of Maidstone 

 Review Street trading ‘policy’ at Sevenoaks regarding designation of 
street trading pitches 
Result: Achieved – initial discussion with Legal services and Chief 
Officer showed no demand for this, therefore, at this time, no need to 
adopt legislation or implement policy  

 Investigate feasibility and implement if approved, the charging for pre-
application advice to licence applicants 
Result: started though not achieved yet due to other work demands, 
but in progress – carried over to 2019/20 service plan for completion  

Page 62

Agenda Item 7



 

 A minor review of Licensing Act Statement of Licensing Policy to 
introduce, across the partnership, a section on outdoor events. 
Result – not achieved in year but started in January 2019 and in 
progress to be adopted 2019 (at Bexley, Tunbridge Wells and 
Sevenoaks) 

 A review of the Hub Team Admin procedures and update where 
necessary 
Result: A lot of progress has been made in streamlining and updating 
procedures but due to high number of procedures and practices this 
could not be completed in year – carried over to 2019/20 service plan 
for completion  

  
 
The new service plan for 2019/20 is attached as Appendix B 
 

 

 
 
 
4. CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS  
 
 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

Legal including Human Rights 
Act 

No impact. 

For information only. 

 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Finance and other resources No impact. 

For information only. 

 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Staffing establishment No impact. 

For information only. 

 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Risk Management   No impact. 

For information only. 

 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



 

Data Protection No impact. 

For information only. 

 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Environment  
and Sustainability 

No impact. 

For information only. 

 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Community Safety 

 

No impact. 

For information only. 

 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Health and Safety No impact. 

For information only. 

 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Health and Wellbeing No impact. 

For information only. 

 
 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

 
5. REPORT APPENDICES 
 
The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the 
report: 

 Appendix A: Licensing Performance Report 

 Appendix B: Licensing Partnership – Licensing Service Plan 2019/20 
 

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS  - none 
 
 
 

Page 64

Agenda Item 7



 

Licensing Performance Report - Tunbridge Wells – Portfolio                APPENDIX A 
 

Generated on: 04 June 2019 

 

 

Short Name 
Current 
Value 

Current 
Target 

Status 
Performance Data 
Trend Chart 

Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 

Value Status Value Status Value Status Value Status 

The percentage of 
renewal invitations 

sent out by 
deadline - 

Tunbridge Wells 

100% 95%   

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

The percentage of 
valid personal 

licences processed 
within 2 weeks 
(Hub Team) - 

Tunbridge Wells 

98% 95%   

 

100%  100%  90.91%  100%  

Percentage of 
unopposed 

applications for 
new and variation 
of premises 

licences processed 
within 2 calendar 

months (from date 
of validation to 
issue date) - 

Tunbridge Wells 

100%  95%  

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

P
age 65

A
ppendix A



Short Name 
Current 
Value 

Current 
Target 

Status 
Performance Data 
Trend Chart 

Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 

Value Status Value Status Value Status Value Status 

The percentage of 

valid temporary 
event notices 
processed within 

one working day of 
receipt - Tunbridge 

Wells 

98% 95%   

 

100%  98.68%  98.97%  95.83%  

The percentage of 
driver and operator 
licenses issued 

within 10 days of 
validation (Hub 

Team) - Tunbridge 
Wells 

100%  90%  

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

Premises 
compliance -  

Tunbridge Wells 

Average 
66 

45 per 
quarter   

 

40  57  84  82  

Taxi Compliance -  
Tunbridge Wells 

Average 
89 

45 per 
quarter   

 

58  87  145  65  

Percentage of Dual 
driver licenses 
issued within 10 

days of validation - 
Tunbridge Wells 

100%  90%  

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

P
age 66

A
ppendix A



Short Name 
Current 
Value 

Current 
Target 

Status 
Performance Data 
Trend Chart 

Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 

Value Status Value Status Value Status Value Status 

Percentage of 

Private Hire 
Operator licenses 
issued within 10 

days of validations 
- Tunbridge Wells 

98% 90%   

 

100%  100%  92.86%  100%  

Percentage of 

continuation fees 
invoices issued 1 
month in advance 

of fee being due - 
Tunbridge Wells 

100% 90%   

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

Where continuation 

fees not received 
and action taken 

within a month of 
overdue date - 
Tunbridge Wells 

100% 95%   

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

Action after 

suspension - 
Licensing officers 

resolve by 31 
March - Tunbridge 
Wells 

100% 95%   

 

98%  100%  100%  100%  

 
  

 

 

P
age 67

A
ppendix A



Licensing Performance Report - Sevenoaks – Portfolio                   

Generated on: 04 June 2019 

 

 

Short Name 
Current 
Value 

Current 
Target 

Status 
Performance Data 
Trend Chart 

Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 

Value Status Value Status Value Status Value Status 

The percentage of 

renewal invitations 
sent out by 

deadline 

100% 95%  

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

The percentage of 

valid personal 
licences processed 
within 2 weeks 

(Hub Team) 

100% 95%  

 

100%  100%  93.75%  100%  

Percentage of 
unopposed 

applications for 
new and variation 
of premises 

licences processed 
within 2 calendar 

months (from date 
of validation to 
issue date) 

100% 95%  

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

The percentage of 
valid temporary 
event notices 

processed within 
one working day of 

98% 95%  

 

100%  99%  97.12%  98.85%  

P
age 68

A
ppendix A



Short Name 
Current 
Value 

Current 
Target 

Status 
Performance Data 
Trend Chart 

Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 

Value Status Value Status Value Status Value Status 

receipt 

The percentage of 

driver and operator 
licenses issued 
within 10 days of 

validation (Hub 
Team) 

100% 90%  

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

Premises 
compliance 

Average 
70 

 45 per 
quarter  

 

30  101  92  57  

Taxi Compliance 
Average 

51 

45 per 

quarter   

 

30  41  58  74  

Percentage of 
Hackney Carriage 
driver licenses 

issued within 10 
days of validation 

100% 90%   

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

Percentage of 

Private Hire driver 
licenses issued 

within 10 days of 
validations 

100% 90%   

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

P
age 69

A
ppendix A



Short Name 
Current 
Value 

Current 
Target 

Status 
Performance Data 
Trend Chart 

Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 

Value Status Value Status Value Status Value Status 

Percentage of 

Private Hire 
Operator licenses 
issued within 10 

days of validations 

100%  90%  

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

Percentage of 
continuation fees 

invoices issued 1 
month in advance 
of fee being due 

100% 95%   

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

Where continuation 
fees not received 
and action taken 

within a month of 
overdue date 

100%  95%  

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

Action after 

suspension – 
Licensing officers 
resolve by 31 

March 

98% 95%   

 

97%  96.43%  100%  100%  

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 70

A
ppendix A



Licensing Performance Report - Bexley – Portfolio                        

Generated on: 04 June 2019 

 

 

Short Name 
Current 
Value 

Current 
Target 

Status 
Performance Data 
Trend Chart 

Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 

Value Status Value Status Value Status Value Status 

The percentage of 

renewal invitations 
sent out by 

deadline - Bexley 

100% 95%   

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

The percentage of 

valid personal 
licences processed 
within 2 weeks 

(Hub Team) - 
Bexley 

94% 95%   

 

97.22%  97.06%  93.1%  86.96%  

Percentage of 

unopposed 
applications for 
new and variation 

of premises 
licences processed 

within 2 calendar 
months (from date 
of validation to 

issue date) - 
Bexley 

100% 95%   

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

P
age 71

A
ppendix A



Short Name 
Current 
Value 

Current 
Target 

Status 
Performance Data 
Trend Chart 

Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 

Value Status Value Status Value Status Value Status 

The percentage of 

valid temporary 
event notices 
processed within 

one working day of 
receipt - Bexley 

95% 95%   

 

100%  100%  95.2%  98.88%  

Premises 
compliance - 

Bexley 

Average 
121 

90 per 
quarter   

 

90  107  157  130  

Action after 

suspension - 
Licensing officers 

resolve by 31 
March - Bexley 

100% 95%  

 

95% (Bexley do their own – no Hub Team involvement) 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 72

A
ppendix A



Licensing Performance Report - Maidstone - Portfolio 
 

Generated on: 04 June 2019 

 

 

Short Name 
Current 
Value 

Current 
Target 

Status 
Performance Data 
Trend Chart 

Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 

Value Status Value Status Value Status Value Status 

Length of time 
from validation to 

issue of HC and 
dual driver licences 

(Percentage within 
10 days) 

100%  90%  

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

Length of time 

from validation to 
issue of PH driver 
licence (Percentage 

issued within 10 
days) 

94%  90%  

 

100%  96.67%  97.3%  80%  

Percentage of PHO 
licences issued 
within 10 days 

100%  90%  

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

Premises 

compliance 

Average 

50 

45 per 

quarter  

 

32  48  62  57  

P
age 73

A
ppendix A



Short Name 
Current 
Value 

Current 
Target 

Status 
Performance Data 
Trend Chart 

Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 

Value Status Value Status Value Status Value Status 

The percentage of 
renewal invitations 
sent out by 

deadline 

100% 95%   

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

The percentage of 

valid temporary 
event notices 

processed within 
one working day of 
receipt 

99% 95%   

 

96%  
100.00

%  
100.00

%  
100.00

%  

Taxi Compliance 
Average 

62 
45 per 
quarter   

 

75  52  68  53  

Where continuation 
fees not received 
and action taken 

within a month of 
overdue date 

100% 95%   

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

Percentage of 

continuation fees 
invoices issued 1 

month in advance 
of fee being due 

100% 100%   

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

P
age 74

A
ppendix A



Short Name 
Current 
Value 

Current 
Target 

Status 
Performance Data 
Trend Chart 

Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 

Value Status Value Status Value Status Value Status 

The percentage of 

driver and operator 
licenses issued 
within 10 days of 

validation (Hub 
Team) 

100% 90%   

 

100.00
%  

100.00
%  

100.00
%  

100.00
%  

Percentage of 

Private Hire 
Operator licenses 
issued within 10 

days of validations 

100% 90%   

 

100.00

%  
100.00

%  
100.00

%  
100.00

%  

Percentage of 
Hackney Carriage 

driver licenses 
issued within 10 

days of validation 

100% 90%   

 

100.00
%  

100.00
%  

100.00
%  

100.00
%  

Percentage of dual 
driver licenses 

issued within 10 
days of validation 

100.00%  90%  

 

100.00

%  
100.00

%  
100.00

%  
100.00

%  

Percentage of 
unopposed 

applications for 
new and variation 
of premises 

licences processed 
within 2 calendar 

months (from date 

100% 95%  

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

P
age 75

A
ppendix A



Short Name 
Current 
Value 

Current 
Target 

Status 
Performance Data 
Trend Chart 

Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 

Value Status Value Status Value Status Value Status 

of validation to 

issue date) 

The percentage of 
valid personal 
licences processed 

within 2 weeks 
(Hub Team) 

98%  95%  

 

100.00
%  

100.00
%  92.31%  

100.00
%  

Action after 

suspension - 
Licensing officers 

resolve by 31 
March 

100% 95%  

 

100%  100%  100%  100%  

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 76

A
ppendix A



APPENDIX B 

Licensing  

Service Plan 

2019/20 

 

 
 

P
age 77

A
ppendix B



Page 2 

Contents 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section Page Number 

1 Who we are 3 

2 What we do 5 

3 2019/20 Service Objectives 6 - 15 

4 Performance indicators and targets 16 - 18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 78

A
ppendix B



Page 3 

1.  Who we are 
 

Team Licensing Partnership comprising London Borough of Bexley, Maidstone Borough Council, Sevenoaks District 

Council and Tunbridge Wells Borough Council   

Head of Service Sharon Bamborough 

Chief Officers Gary Stevenson (Tunbridge Wells), John Littlemore (Maidstone), Richard Wilson (Sevenoaks) and David Bryce-Smith 

(LB of Bexley) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 79

A
ppendix B



Page 4 

 

 

 

Our Structure Chart   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Senior Licensing 
Officer  
1FTE  

  

Senior 
Licensing 

Officer 1FTE  

Licensing Officer 
1FTE 

 

Licensing Officer 1 FTE  

 

Senior Licensing 

Officer – 1FTE 

Admin Team Manager  
1FTE 
 
Licensing  
Administration Officer 
– 5 FTE + 1 PTE (20 
hours ) 
 

 

Part time Licensing 
Admin Officer. 

20 hours   

Part time Licensing 
Admin Officer 
(15 hours)  
 

 

 
Contact Centre  Gateway  Gateway 

Sevenoaks District 
Council 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

Borough 
Council 

Maidstone 

Borough Council 

Licensing 
Officer 1FTE 

 

Head of Licensing Partnership 
1 FTE 

 
 

London Borough of 

Bexley 

Principal 
Licensing 
Officer 1FTE 
 

 

Licensing 
Enforcement 
Officer 1FTE  

    

Part Time 
Licensing 
Officer  
18 hours 
(Tues & 
Thurs) 

 

P
age 80

A
ppendix B



Page 5 

2.  What we do 
 

Key Tasks  Manage and oversee the Licensing Partnership. 

 Seek to promote the licensing objectives of the relevant legislation.  

 Our aim is to protect the public but also allow legitimate businesses within the area to prosper. 

 To ensure that the legitimate taxis and private hire trade are able to provide a safe mode of transport to the 

residents and users within the Partnership’s area. 

 Compliance – ensure compliance of licensed premises, activities and events following grant of respective 

licences, permits and / or notices. 

 To ensure that unlicensed premises, taxis/private hire and activities are investigated and appropriate action is 

taken. 

 To enhance customer service while ensuring compliance with legislation.  

 Fulfilling statutory duty whilst optimising cost savings and maintaining individual client’s Council sovereignty. 

 Take advantage of economies of scale to buy services and optimise the collaborative working between partners 

 

P
age 81

A
ppendix B



Page 6 

3.  2019/20 Service Objectives 

 

Objective 1 To oversee and lead the Licensing Partnership to deliver efficiency savings and achieve 

performance targets 

Responsible 

Officer 

Sharon 

Bamborough 

 

Performance 

Measure 

Description 2019/20  Target or Outcome (to be achieved 

by 31.03.2020) 

LPI LIC 001 Send out renewal invitations for all licences/permits etc. 2 months before 

the expiry date of the licence and if a valid renewal application is not 

received before the expiry of a licence send a failure to renew letter out 

within 1 week of the licence expiring and advise the appropriate Authorities 

accordingly. (Hub Team) 

95% 

LPI LIC 002 
The percentage of valid personal licences processed within 2 weeks (Hub 

Team) 
95% 

LPI LIC 003 

Percentage of unopposed applications for new and variation of premises 

licences processed within 2 calendar months (from date of validation to 

issue date) [All] 

95% 

LPI LIC 004 
The percentage of valid temporary event notices served on Responsible 

Authorities within one working day of receipt (Hub Team) 
95% 

LPI LIC 005 
The percentage of driver and operator licences issued within 10 days of 

validation (Hub team) 
90% 

MPI LIC 05a 
Percentage of Hackney Carriage driver licences issued within 10 days of 

validation (Hub team) 
90% 

MPI LIC 05b Percentage of Private Hire driver licences issued within 10 days of validations 90% 

MPI LIC 05c 
Percentage of Private Hire Operator licences issued within 10 days of 

validations 
90% 

P
age 82

A
ppendix B



Page 7 

MPI LIC 017 

Taxi Compliance (licensing officers at Sevenoaks, Tunbridge Wells and 

Maidstone):- 

 start action/investigation on receipt of complaints/intelligence 

within 5 working days (includes visits/letters/interviews etc) 

 reactive/proactive enforcement investigations ongoing/completed 

 warnings / penalty points issued 

 vehicle compliance checks   

Non London partners only: 15 actions per 

month per authority  

 

 

MPI LIC 018 

Premises compliance (all licensing officers throughout partnership) :–  

 notice checks to be carried out within one week of initial display 

 start action/investigation on receipt of complaints/intelligence 

within 5 working days (includes visits/letters/interviews etc) 

 carry out proactive visits in accordance with risk rating system 

 attend enforcement meetings/briefings/collaborate with partners 

on multi-agency approach 

Non London partners – 15 actions per 

month per authority 

Bexley – 30 actions per month  

 

 

MPI LIC 019 

(for partners where Hub team arrange annual fee collection -does not apply 

to Bexley) 

(i) Send out invoices for continuation fees for licences/permits 

issued under the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005 at 

least 1 month in advance of the fee being due  

(ii) Where those fees are not received by the due date, take action 

to suspend/revoke licence/permit within 1 month of the fee 

being due.  

 

(Hub Team) 

95% 

 

MPI LIC 020 

Action after suspension - Licensing officers to visit /establish status and 

resolve by 31 March each year  

(all licensing officers throughout partnership) 

95% 

Link to Sevenoaks 

Corporate Plan 

Providing value for money Link to Sevenoaks 

Community Plan 

Safe Communities 

P
age 83

A
ppendix B



Page 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Link to Maidstone 

Stategic Plan 

Keeping Maidstone an attractive place for all - Ensuring there are good leisure and cultural attractions 

Link to Tunbridge Wells 

Key Objectives in the 

Vision 

Providing Value  Link to Strategic Compass To ensure we operate in a business–like way  

Link to Bexley 

Corporate Plan 

(Shaping our Future 

Together)  

Innovation and self sufficiency  

P
age 84

A
ppendix B



Page 9 

 
   

Objective 2 Investigate further undertaking of licensing functions for other local authorities. Responsible 

Officer 
Licensing 

Partnership 

Board 

 

Performance 

Measure 

Description 2019/20  Target or Outcome 

Action Make enquiries with potential partners to undertake licensing functions for a 5th 

partner. 

Further functions carried out for other 

partners. 

To be achieved by 31/03/2020 

Action Implement the required processes/changes to ensure an additional partner is 

integrated within the Licensing Partnership 

A smooth integration of any additional 

partners 

 

Link to Sevenoaks 

Corporate Plan 

Providing value for money Link to Sevenoaks 

Community Plan 

Safe Communities 

Link to Maidstone 

Corporate Priorities 

Securing a successful economy for Maidstone Borough 

Link to Bexley 

corporate plan 

Innovation and self sufficiency – a commercial approach  

Link to Tunbridge Wells 

Corporate Priorities 

To support a prosperous borough Link to Strategic Compass Providing value 

P
age 85

A
ppendix B



Page 10 

Objective 3 Seek further efficiency savings in processes and use of online facilities Responsible 

Officer 
Sharon 

Bamborough 

 

Performance 

Measure 

Description 2019/20  Target or Outcome 

Action Review (ongoing) processes and procedures of Hub team officers and streamline 

/ change to save time on unnecessary record keeping  

A reduction in time spent by Hub Team staff 

completing basic processing which should 

allow for better target achivement  

To be achieved by 31/03/2020 

Action Consider current practices re face to face meetings (taxis) and pick up of plates – 

move over to sending by post where appropriate.  

A reduction in the time spent by Hub Team 

staff attending reception and by admin staff at 

partner sites seeing applicants in person 

To be achieved by 31/03/2020.  

Action Explore feasibility of online solutions for document checks for taxi applications to 

reduce face to face visits 

If achievable, will lead to a reduction in time 

spent for Licensing Partnership staff in 

reception, Town Hall & Gateway. 

To be achieved by 31/03/2020 

 

Link to Sevenoaks 

Corporate Plan 

Supporting and developing the local 

economy 

Link to Sevenoaks 

Community Plan 

Safe Communities 

Link to Bexley 

corporate plan 

Innovation and self sufficiency – a 

commercial approach  

Link to Maidstone 

Corporate Priorities 

Securing a successful economy for Maidstone 

Borough 

Link to Tunbridge Wells 

Corporate Priorities 

To support a prosperous borough Link to Strategic Compass Providing value 

 
 
 
 

P
age 86

A
ppendix B



Page 11 

Objective 4 Ensure all online forms are implemented and in use by customers and explore other 

software solutions 

Responsible 

Officer 
Sharon 

Bamborough 

 

Performance 

Measure 

Description 2019/20  Target or Outcome 

Action The library of on line forms should implemented across the four partners – to 

include new forms for Bexley (Special Treatments) and any updates needed for 

existing ones (eg animal licensing) 

Complete the introduction/update of all online 

forms. 

To be achieved by 31/12/2019 

Action Arrange for purchase and installation of electronic record management system, 

Enterprise (from Idox) 

Increased efficiency and monitoring tools, with 

enhanced reporting options 

To be achieved by 31/12/2019 

Action  Arrange for purchase and installation of electronic enforcement software for use 

out and about, called Mobile App (from Idox)  

Increased efficiency and monitoring tools, with 

enhanced reporting options 

To be achieved by 31/12/2019 

 

Link to Sevenoaks 

Corporate Plan 

Supporting and developing the local 

economy 

Link to Sevenoaks 

Community Plan 

Safe Communities 

Link to Bexley 

corporate plan 

Innovation and self sufficiency – a 

commercial approach  

Link to Maidstone 

Corporate Priorities 

Securing a successful economy for Maidstone 

Borough 

Link to Tunbridge Wells 

Corporate Priorities 

To support a prosperous borough Link to Strategic Compass Providing value 

  

P
age 87

A
ppendix B



Page 12 

 

Objective 5 Undertake a programme of training for Members and officers. Ensure all new Members 

on each Licensing Committee receive appropriate training. 

Responsible 

Officer 

Sharon 

Bamborough 

 

Performance 

Measure 

Description 2019/20  Target or Outcome 

Action Deliver a programme of training to the Members and officers. Train any new members to Licensing 

committee following local elections in May 

2019 (Sevenoaks) and ad hoc training to any 

other new members appointed for all partners 

To be achieved by 31/08/2019 

Action Hold morning/afternoon sessions where new Members can visit the Licensing 

Partnership’s Administration Team. 
To be achieved by 30/09/2020 

 

Link to Sevenoaks 

Corporate Plan 

Keeping the district safe Link to Sevenoaks 

Community Plan 

Safe Communities 

Link to Bexley 

corporate plan 

Growth that benefits all – the right skills for 

jobs of today and tomorrow  

Link to Maidstone 

Corporate Priorities 

Securing a successful economy for Maidstone 

Borough – range of Employment Skills and 

opportunities across the Borough 

Link to Tunbridge Wells 

Corporate Priorities 

Our People Link to Strategic Compass To have relevant skills 

  

P
age 88

A
ppendix B



Page 13 

 
 
 

Objective 6 Revision of Policies & Procedures Responsible 

Officer 

Sharon 

Bamborough/Lorraine 

Neale/Sharon 

Degiorgio/Samantha 

Laing/Janet Lockie 

 

Performance Measure Description 2019/20  Target or Outcome 

Action Start the review LA03 Policies across the Partnership in readiness for 

January 2021 when they must come into force 

Achieve statutory obligations. 

To be achieved by 31/03/2020 

Action Review Street trading policy at Maidstone regarding designation of street 

trading pitches  

To reduce the cost burden of processing each 

request and/or reduce the number of requests  

To be achieved by 31/03/2020 

Action Re-visit (with Legal Services) the approach to street trading in Sevenoaks 

with a view to assessing what would need to be done to implement such a 

policy, and report back to Chief Officer (this comes from a discussion at 

Health Board as to whether anything can be done to stop fast food vans 

etc parking up near schools, which contributes to childhood obesity) 

A up to date view will be taken on feasibility 

and desire as to whether street trading should 

be controlled within Sevenoaks and whether it 

could be used to promote wider health 

benefits 

To be achieved by 31/03/2020 

Action Implement, the charging for pre-application advice to licence applicants 

where not already introduced 

To reduce the cost burden of processing each 

request and/or reduce the number of requests  

To be achieved by 31/12/2019 

Action Review outcome of Street trading farmers market consultation at 

Tunbridge Wells regarding designation of a farmers market, and take to 

committee with appropriate recommendations 

To deliver the political desire to accommodate 

this market To be achieved by 31/12/2019 

Action A review of the Hub Team Admin procedures and update where necessary  To improve efficiency, reduce mistakes and 

P
age 89

A
ppendix B



Page 14 

speed up processing 

To be achieved by 31/03/2020 

Action To review taxi policies in Maidstone, Tunbridge Wells and Sevenoaks as 

needed. 

To deliver the implementation of the ULEV taxi charging points in 

conjunction with Kent CC following successful bid for funding 

To improve efficiency, reduce mistakes and 

speed up processing 

To link into and support proactive action 

regarding air quality 

To be achieved by 31/03/2020 

Link to Sevenoaks 

Corporate Plan 

Supporting and developing the local 

economy 

Link to Sevenoaks 

Community Plan 

Safe Communities 

Link to Bexley 

corporate plan 

Innovation and self sufficiency – a 

commercial approach  

Link to Maidstone 

Corporate Priorities 

Securing a successful economy for Maidstone 

Borough 

Link to Tunbridge Wells 

Corporate Priorities 

To support a prosperous borough Link to Strategic Compass Providing value 

 
  

P
age 90

A
ppendix B



Page 15 

 

Objective 7 Health, Safety and Well Being of Staff Responsible 

Officer 
Sharon 

Bamborough 

 

Performance Measure Description 2019/20  Target or Outcome 

Action Ensure risk assessments are carried out and reviewed as appropriate and 

at least once a year. 

Risk assessments are in place and are 

reviewed. 

To be achieved by 31/03/2020 

Action Ensure 1:1 meetings are carried out on a regular basis. All Senior Licensing Officers and Licensing 

Partnership Manager to ensure meetings take 

place and are documented. 

 

Link to Sevenoaks 

Corporate Plan 

Supporting and developing the local 

economy 

Link to Sevenoaks 

Community Plan 

Safe Communities 

Link to Bexley 

corporate plan 

Innovation and self sufficiency – a 

commercial approach  

Link to Maidstone 

Corporate Priorities 

Securing a successful economy for Maidstone 

Borough 

Link to Tunbridge Wells 

Corporate Priorities 

To support a prosperous borough Link to Strategic Compass Providing value 

  

P
age 91

A
ppendix B



Page 16 

 

4. Measuring our Performance 
 

Performance Indicators and Target Setting 
 

 

Code  Description Collection period 2019/20 target 

 

LPI LIC 001 

Send out renewal invitations for all licences/permits etc. 2 months 

before the expiry date of the licence and if a valid renewal 

application is not received before the expiry of a licence send a 

failure to renew letter out within 1 week of the licence expiring and 

advise the appropriate Authorities accordingly. (Hub Team) 

Monthly 

 

 
95% 

LPI LIC 002 
The percentage of valid personal licences processed within 2 

weeks (Hub Team) 
Monthly 95% 

LPI LIC 003 

Percentage of unopposed applications for new and variation of 

premises licences processed within 2 calendar months (from date 

of validation to issue date) [All] 

Monthly 95% 

LPI LIC 004 

The percentage of valid temporary event notices served on 

Responsible Authorities within one working day of receipt (Hub 

Team) 

Monthly 95% 

LPI LIC 005 
The percentage of driver and operator licences issued within 10 days 

of validation (Hub team) 
Monthly 90% 

MPI LIC 

05a 
Percentage of Hackney Carriage driver licences issued within 10 days 

of validation (Hub team) 
Monthly 90% 

MPI LIC 

05b 
Percentage of Private Hire driver licences issued within 10 days of 

validation (Hub team) 
Monthly 90% 

P
age 92

A
ppendix B



Page 17 

Code  Description Collection period 2019/20 target 

MPI LIC 05c 
Percentage of Private Hire Operator licences issued within 10 days of 

validation (Hub team) 
Monthly 90% 

MPI LIC 

012 

Length of time from validation to issue of HC vehicle licence (MPI) - 

target 10 working days (Hub team) 
Monthly average number of days 

MPI LIC 

013 

Length of time from validation to issue of PH vehicle licence (MPI) 

– target 10 working days (Hub team) 
Monthly average number of days 

MPI LIC 

017 

Taxi Compliance (licensing officers at Sevenoaks, Tunbridge Wells 

and Maidstone):- 

 start action/investigation on receipt of 

complaints/intelligence within 5 working days (includes 

visits/letters/interviews etc) 

 reactive/proactive enforcement investigations 

ongoing/completed 

 warnings / penalty points issued 

 vehicle compliance checks 

Monthly  

Non London partners only: 180 

each  (equates to 15 actions per 

month per authority)  

 

 

MPI LIC 

018 

Premises compliance (all licensing officers throughout partnership)  

 notice checks to be carried out within one week of initial 

display 

 start action/investigation on receipt of 

complaints/intelligence within 5 working days (includes 

visits/letters/interviews etc) 

 carry out proactive visits in accordance with risk rating 

system 

 attend enforcement meetings/briefings/collaborate with 

Monthly  

Non London partners – 180 

each (equates to 15 actions per 

month per authority 

Bexley – 360 (equates to 30 

actions per month)  

 

P
age 93

A
ppendix B



Page 18 

partners on multi-agency approach 

Code  Description Collection period 2019/20 target 

 

MPI LIC 

019 

(for partners where Hub team arrange annual fee collection)  

Send out invoices for continuation fees for licences/permits issued 

under the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005 at least 1 

month in advance of the fee being due and where those fees are 

not received by the due date to take action to suspend/revoke 

licence/permit within 1 month of the fee being due. (Hub Team) 

Monthly 95% 

MPI LIC 

020 

Action after suspension - Licensing officers to visit /establish 

status and resolve by 31 March each year (all licensing officers 

throughout partnership) 

Annual 95% 

 

P
age 94

A
ppendix B



 

Licensing Committee 17 September 2019 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? Yes 

 

Introduction of Licensing Pre-application Advice  
 

Final Decision-Maker Licensing Committee  

Portfolio Holder(s)  Portfolio Holder for Sustainability 

Lead Director  Paul Taylor - Director of Change and Communities 

Head of Service Gary Stevenson - Head of Housing, Health and Environment 

Lead Officer/Author Sharon Bamborough – Head of Licensing Partnership 

Classification 

 

Non-exempt (Public) 

Wards affected All 

  

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 

1. To agree in principle to the introduction of charging for pre-application advice for 
certain types of licence applications 

  

Explain how this report relates to the Corporate Priorities in the Five Year Plan: 

 A Prosperous Borough 

 A Green Borough 

 A Confident Borough 

 To ensure effective partnership working 

 

  

Timetable  

Meeting Date 

Licensing Committee – consider in principle 17 September 2019 

Licensing Committee  - annual review of fees 
and charges 

3 December 2019 

Tunbridge Wells Committee Report, version: December 2018 

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



 

Introduction of Licensing Pre-application Advice 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report invites Members to consider introducing, in principle, a fee for the 

provision of pre-application advice for applications relating to various types of 
premises licensing (a list of the types is attached at Appendix A) as well as a 
‘check and send’ type service for volume applications which have a high rate of 
errors and are invalid on receipt.  

 
1.2 It is requested that Member consider this as an ‘in principle’ decision – and if 

agreed, the proposed fees will be included as part of the larger annual review of 
fees and charges report in the coming months. 

 

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 We are committed to working with our customers early in the premises licence  
application process in order to help them to submit the best possible application 
which might be acceptable, to give advice on information needed (statutory and 
policy) and to confirm who must be consulted. Pre application advice is also 
helpful so that our customers know how to make a valid application. To that end 
we positively encourage pre application advice because it can give the 
customer greater clarity and reassurance about their application. We can also 
alert them to issues and concerns that might arise from their proposal. Whilst 
this approach will be encouraged we will make it clear that it is not a 
requirement for an application.  

 
2.2 Our charged pre application scheme will provide customers with detailed written 

advice on statutory requirements and policy. There will be a template form and 
guidance available on our website for applicants. This will ensure that we 
receive all the information that we need in order to give appropriate advice. Any 
advice given on policy/statute will be clear as to what is a statutory requirement 
and what is policy or guidance, and that each case has to be considered on its 
own merits 

 
2.3 Our proposed ‘check and send’ service for volume applications will provide 

officer time in assisting in completion of the application, advice on 
documentation needed and help in submitting the application.  

 
2.4 Providing pre-application advice prior to an application being made is a 

discretionary service. Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows this 
discretionary service as it is classed as conducive or incidental in relation to 
carrying out the licensing functions. 

 
Current arrangements 
 
2.5 Currently the licensing team offers pre-application advice free of charge to 

applicants who request this service. In the course of a year the team deals with 

Page 96

Agenda Item 8



 

approximately xx (awaiting figure) applications for Tunbridge Wells. One hour is 
the average amount of time spent on pre-application advice, excluding large 
scale events and these meetings take place at the Council offices and some 
take place on site. 
 

2.6 The proposal is for the Licensing Team to recover all their reasonable costs in 
providing pre-application advice and use the income received to offset salary 
costs and make the service as far as possible self-financing. The fees proposed 
will be calculated based upon an average officer hourly rate and what level of 
officer carries out the work. 
 

2.7 It is proposed that this service will cover only certain licensing regimes, mainly 
premises based. It will not, for example, cover hackney carriage/private hire 
licensing.  

 
2.8 Having regard to other models adopted by other authorities, it is proposed to 

charge applicants on the basis of how complex the application is and therefore 
how much officer time will be taken up in providing the correct level of advice. 
(Costs of other authorities’ schemes are attached at Appendix B for 
comparison) 

 

2.9 The pre-application advice can involve carrying out a site visit, attending 
meetings, telephone calls, assessing plans and possible advice on drafting of 
proposed conditions. The Licensing Team will also provide advice on the 
process and the practicalities of filling out various forms so as to ensure when 
the applications are submitted it can be made valid. This will usually include 
written advice and/or a meeting with the applicant.  

 
2.10 Any written advice will contain the important caveat that pre-application advice 

does not guarantee that their application will be successful. Neither will it 
exempt them from any enforcement action taken by the council. 

 
2.11 For the ‘check and send’ service, this will relate to  Licensing Act 2003 

applications for transfers and variations of designated premises supervisors, 
because there is a higher instance of applications being submitted which are 
invalid upon receipt and require a lot of work for the Hub team to sort out with 
the applicant.  
 

2.12 It is also proposed that in general, we would not charge for charitable 
organisations, provided they provide evidence of charitable status. Decisions 
on exemption from fees will be at the discretion of the Licensing Service.  

 
Statutory functions 
 

 

2.13 Section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003 introduced a general power for 
Best Value authorities to charge for discretionary services subject to having 
regard to the statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State. The power 
came into force on 18 November 2003 and at the same time the ODPM (Office 
of the Deputy Prime Minister) issued guidance for local authorities on how to 
use this power: ‘General power for Best Value Authorities to Charge for 

Page 97

Agenda Item 8



 

Discretionary Services – Guidance on the Power in the Local Government Act 
2003’. 

 
2.14 The Guidance on the Power in Section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003   

sets out the underlying principles for the introduction of charges for 
discretionary services. It stipulates that such charges must not provide a new 
source of income and should only cover the cost of provision, i.e. not make a 
profit. Charges must be based on principles set out in the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Best Value Accounting Code of 
Practice. A charge can only be made if the recipient agrees to the service. 

 
2.15 At present the Licensing team offers this service free of charge. The team will 

still carry out the statutory functions in processing the applications and this 
function will not be included in the charges. In addition, they will still answer 
minor queries and enquiries. 

 
2.16 The intent of the introduction of paid for advice is to cover the costs of:  

 
• lengthy appointments - especially if an applicant has either chosen not to 

engage legal representation (and needs a great deal of guidance) or if an 
agent feels that a formal appointment would be beneficial to their client in 
order to address concerns up front and smooth the way for the 
application following advice from very experienced officers.  

 
 This will be provided by the senior licensing officer or licensing officer, and 

will include advice on the legislation and our policies. 
 

• A ‘check and send’ type service (to be provided by the Hub Team) to deal 
with the high volume of incorrect /badly drafted applications for variation 
of DPS, Transfers, etc. They would offer an appointment to check the 
application (or provide step by step advice on completion if submitting 
online) 

 
 This will be provided by one of the Licensing Hub team officers, and is much 

more focused on whether an application has been correctly completed or is 
missing any required documentation.  

 
 

 

 
3. AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
 
3.1 To approve, in principle, the introduction of charging pre-application advice and 

check and send service (with proposed fees to be set out and considered at a 
future meeting of the Licensing Committee).  

 
3.2 To reject the introduction of paid for pre-application advice and continue to 

provide discretionary services free of charge. 
 

 
 

Page 98

Agenda Item 8



 

4. PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 We currently spend a noticeable amount of time providing advice or sorting out 

badly completed applications which has a knock on effect to the other day to 
day work of the team. Work will build up and this causes a knock on effect of 
pressure leading to lack of target achievement or errors, and we sometimes 
then need to use overtime to ensure performance deadlines are being met.  

 
4.2 In order to cover the costs of this overtime caused by impact of spending time 

on this area of work, we are looking to introduce fees to formalize the giving of 
advice and ensure that it can then be covered within the costs or running the 
service instead of being at the expense of it.  

 
4.3  The Licensing Service recommends the first option in order to cover the costs 

of:  
 
• the demands on Licensing officers’ time who currently give this advice for free   
 
• the additional time Hub team officers spend in dealing with applicants who 

have a high instance of invalid applications.  
 

4.4 It is hoped that this will not only cover costs but also lead to a higher number 
of good quality applications being submitted at first attempt. 

 

 
 
5. NEXT STEPS: COMMUNICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

DECISION 
 
5.1 Should the committee be minded to agree the principle of charging for pre-

application advice, the proposed charges will be included in the annual review 
of fees and charges due to come to committee in the next few months.  

 

 
6. CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS 
 
 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

Legal including 
Human Rights 
Act 

The council has statutory powers to charge 
for discretionary services on a cost recovery 
basis. This scheme is within those statutory 
powers.  

 

Robin Harris 

Senior Lawyer – 
Contentious, 
Mid-Kent 

02.09.19 

Finance and 
other resources 

If chargeable pre-application advice is 
introduced, this will have the benefit of 
helping to offset operational costs. 

Lee Colyer, 
Director of 
Finance, Policy & 
Development 

09.09.19 

 

Page 99

Agenda Item 8



 

Staffing 
establishment 

No impact on Tunbridge Wells Borough 
Council  

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Risk 
Management   

A risk assessment is undertaken on an 
annual basis regarding the service 
objectives and reviewed regularly  

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Data Protection No impact.  Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Environment  
and Sustainability 

No impact.  Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Community 
Safety 

 

No impact.  Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Health and 
Safety 

No impact.  Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

No impact.  
 
 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

Equalities No impact.  
 
 

Sharon 
Bamborough 

Page 100

Agenda Item 8



 

Head of 
Licensing 
Partnership  

09.09.19 

 

 
 
 
7. REPORT APPENDICES 
 
 
The following documents are to be published with and form part of the report: 

 Appendix A: List of licensing regimes/applications which will be applicable for per-
application advice.  

 Appendix B: Benchmarking with other authorities. 
 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
none 
 

Page 101

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

LIST OF LICENSING REGIMES / APPLICATIONS 

 WHICH WILL BE APPLICABLE FOR PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE 

 

Licensing act 2003  

New applications  (The application fees range from £100 up to £1050+) 

Full variations  (application fees as above) 

Minor variations (application fee £89) 

Transfer (application fee £23)  (check and send service) 

Variation of Designated Premises Supervisor (application fee £23) (check and send service)  

 

Gambling Act 2005 and Animal Welfare regulations 2018 

All new applications  (the application fees range from £1829 – £2932) 

All variations ( application fees range from £1000 – £1750) 

 

The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018 

New applications (application fees range from £386 to £483) 

 

 

Page 103

Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



BENCHMARKING WITH OTHER LICENSING AUTHORITES (ALL PRICES INCLUDE VAT)                                                                                APPENDIX B 

 

 SEVENOAKS 
PROPOSED     
(TO PROPOSE 

SIMILAR FOR  
MAIDSTONE, 
TUNBRIDGE WELLS & 
LB BEXLEY) 

Folkstone-
Hythe 
(intention to 
increase 
within next 
year) 

LB BROMLEY LB OF 
LAMBETH 

LB OF 
HAMMERSMITH 

& FULHAM 

RB of 
Kensington 
&Chelsea 

LB CAMDEN CITY OF 
WESTMINSTER 

Small 
Application- Up 
to one hour of 
advice 
regarding small 
licence 
applications,  
 

£66 £24  (Basic 
written 
advice) 

£74 £150 £126.50  
 
 

£118.80 £153.00 

 

£338  
 
NOTE: Up to 3 
hours of officer 
time. 

Medium 
Application- Up 
to 2 hours 
advice for 
medium size 
applications 
including a site 
visit  
 

£138 £47  (30 
minute 
meeting 
with written 
advice) 

£174 £222 £195.00  
 

£184.80 £275.40 

 

£677  
 
NOTE: Up to 6 
hours of officer 
time 

Large 
Application- Up 
to 4 hours 
advice for large 
applications 
including 

£258  SEE ABOVE £354 £332.00 £314.40 £581.40 

 

£1805  
 
NOTE: For 
applications 
which need 
considerable 

P
age 105

A
ppendix B



multiple (if 
necessary) site 
visits  
 

officer time.  

Extra large 
events - 5000 
people or 
more- Category 
A - up to 7 
hours advice 
for extra large 
public events 
includes the 
cost of 
specialist 
officers  
 

Events up to 
1000 capacity:  
 
£354 
 
 
 
 

 SEE ABOVE £552  £527.50  
 
 

£498 SEE ABOVE SEE ABOVE 

Extra large 
events - 5000 
people or 
more- Category 
B - up to 14 
hours advice 
for extra large 
public events 
includes the 
cost of 
specialist 
officers  
 

Events up to 
1999 capacity  
 
£498 
 
Events 
between 2000 
and up to 4999 
capacity 
 
£690 

 SEE ABOVE £1074 £1055.50  
 
 

£996 SEE ABOVE SEE ABOVE 

Extra large 
events - 5000 
people or more 

Events over 
5,000 capacity 
 

 SEE ABOVE £1680 £1582.00  
 

£1494 SEE ABOVE SEE ABOVE 

P
age 106

A
ppendix B



- Category C - 
up to 21 hours 
advice for extra 
large public 
events includes 
the cost of 
specialist 
officers  
 

£1026 

         

 

Weblinks for benchmarking: 

 

https://www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk/licensing/alcohol-and-entertainment-licences/pre-application-advice 

https://www.bromley.gov.uk/info/200063/licences/1137/licensing_pre-application_advice 

https://www.lambeth.gov.uk/business-services-rates-and-licensing/licence-applications/pre-application-licensing-advice 

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/licensing_act_and_pre_applications_advice_fees.pdf 

https://www.rbkc.gov.uk/licensing-information/applicants-and-businesses/licensing-pre-application-advice 

https://www.camden.gov.uk/pre-application-advice-for-licensing 

https://www.westminster.gov.uk/licensing-pre-application-advice-service 

 

P
age 107

A
ppendix B

https://www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk/licensing/alcohol-and-entertainment-licences/pre-application-advice
https://www.bromley.gov.uk/info/200063/licences/1137/licensing_pre-application_advice
https://www.lambeth.gov.uk/business-services-rates-and-licensing/licence-applications/pre-application-licensing-advice
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/licensing_act_and_pre_applications_advice_fees.pdf
https://www.rbkc.gov.uk/licensing-information/applicants-and-businesses/licensing-pre-application-advice
https://www.camden.gov.uk/pre-application-advice-for-licensing
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/licensing-pre-application-advice-service


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Licensing Committee 17 September 
2019 

 

Urgent Business 
 

Procedural Item: 
 

To consider any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent, for the reasons to 
be stated, in accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

Page 109

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Licensing Committee 17 September 
2019 

 

Date of Next Meeting 
 

Procedural Item: 
 

To note that the date of the next scheduled meeting is Tuesday 3 December 2019 at 
6pm. 

 

Page 111

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Chairman's Introduction
	2 Apologies for Absence
	3 Declarations of Interest:
	4 Notification of Visiting Members wishing to speak (in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18):
	5 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Licensing Act 2003 - Statement of Licensing Policy
	Licensing Act 2003 - Statement of Licensing Policy Appendix A
	Licensing Act 2003 - Statement of Licensing Policy APPENDIX B

	7 Licensing Partnership Update Report 2019
	Licensing Partnership Update Report 2019 Appendix A
	Licensing Partnership Update Report 2019 Appendix B

	8 Introduction of Licensing Pre-Application Advice
	Introduction of Licensig Pre-application Advice - Appendix A
	Introduction of Licensing pre-application advice - Appendix B BENCHMARKING WITH OTHER LICENSING AUTHORITES

	9 Urgent Business:
	10 Date of Next Meeting



